
 

 

 

 
Meeting 
 

Planning Committee 
 

Date and Time 
 

Thursday, 25th February, 2021 at 9.30 am. 

Venue 
 

This meeting will be held virtually and a live audio stream can 
be listened to via www.winchester.gov.uk. 

 
Note: Owing to the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic and government guidance, it will not 
be possible to hold this meeting in person. The Council has therefore made 
arrangements under the Coronavirus Act 2020, and subsequent Regulations 
permitting remote meetings, to hold the meeting virtually. If you are a member of the 
public and would like to listen to the audio stream of the meeting you may do so via 
www.winchester.gov.uk 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
PROCEDURAL ITEMS 
 

1.   Apologies and Deputy Members  
  

To record the names of apologies given and Deputy Members who are attending 
the meeting in place of appointed Members. 
 

2.   Disclosures of Interests  
  

To receive any disclosure of interests from Members and Officers in matters to 
be discussed.  
 
Note: Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests, personal and/or prejudicial interests, and on 
Predetermination or Bias in accordance with legislation and the Council’s Code 
of Conduct.  
 
If you require advice, please contact the appropriate Democratic Services 
Officer, prior to the meeting. 
 

3.   Membership of Sub-Committees etc  
  

To give consideration to the approval of alternative arrangements for 
appointments to bodies set up by the Committee or the making or terminating of 
such appointments. 
 

Public Document Pack



4.   Minutes (Pages 9 - 20) 
   

Minutes of the previous meetings held on 17 December 2020 and 21 January 
2021.  

 

 

Public speaking is allowed on individual planning applications, subject to 
certain restrictions – please contact the Public Speaking Co-ordinator as soon 
as possible, but prior to 4.30pm Friday, 19 February 2021 on (01962) 848 
339 to register to speak and for further details. 

 
 

BUSINESS ITEMS   

  Report 
Number 
 

Ward 

5.   Where appropriate, to accept the Update 
Sheet as an addendum to the Report  
 

  

6.   Planning Applications (WCC Items 7-9) 
(PDC1178 and Update Sheet refers)  
 

  

7.   Collingwood, Lower Chase Road, 
Swanmore, SO32 2PB  
(Case number: 20/01850/FUL)  
(Pages 21 - 38) 
 

 Central Meon 
Valley 

8.   Hampshire Constabulary HQ, Romsey Road, 
Winchester, SO22 5DB  
(Case number: 20/01498/FUL)  
(Pages 39 - 50) 
 

 St Paul 

9.   The Lodge, Home Lane, Sparsholt, 
Winchester, SO21 2NN  
(Case number: 20/00084/HOU)  
(Pages 51 - 74) 
 

 Wonston & 
Micheldever 

10.   Planning Applications (SDNP Items 11 & 12) 
(PDC1178 and Update Sheet refers)  

  

 The following items will not be considered 
before 2.00pm: 
(Depending on the Committee’s progress, 
some of the morning’s items may overrun 
into the afternoon session.  Nevertheless, the 
following items will not be considered before 
2.00pm). 
 

  



11.   Lion Hill House, Alton Road, West Meon, 
GU32 1JF  
(Case number: SDNP/20/03665/FUL)  
(Pages 75 - 122) 
 

 Upper Meon 
Valley 

12.   Long Ash, Pitcot Lane, Owslebury, SO21 
1LR (Case number: SDNP/20/04221/HOUS) 
(Pages 123 - 148) 
 

 Upper Meon 
Valley 

13.   Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order 
TPO 2288 - Combe Folly, Cliff Way, 
Winchester (Pages 149 - 168) 
 

PDC1177 Badger Farm 
& Olivers 
Battery 

14.   Planning Appeals (PDC1179)  
(Pages 169 - 178) 
 

PDC1179  

Lisa Kirkman 
Strategic Director: Resources and Monitoring Officer 

 
All of the Council’s publicly available agendas, reports and minutes are 
available to view and download from the Council’s Website and are also open 
to inspection at the offices of the council.  As part of our drive to minimise our 
use of paper we do not provide paper copies of the full agenda pack at 
meetings. We do however, provide a number of copies of the agenda front 
sheet at the meeting which contains the QR Code opposite. Scanning this 
code enables members of the public to easily access all of the meeting papers 
on their own electronic device. Please hold your device’s camera or QR code 
App over the QR Code so that it's clearly visible within your screen and you 

will be redirected to the agenda pack. 

 

 
17 February 2021 
 
Agenda Contact: Claire Buchanan, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01962 848 438   Email: cbuchanan@winchester.gov.uk 
 
*With the exception of exempt items, Agenda, reports and previous minutes are available on the 
Council’s Website www.winchester.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


MEMBERSHIP 
 
Chair: 
Evans (Liberal Democrats)                     

Vice-Chair: 
Rutter (Liberal Democrats) 

  
 
Conservatives Liberal Democrats 
McLean 
Read 
Ruffell 
 

Clear 
Gordon-Smith 
Laming 
 

Deputy Members 
 

Horrill and Pearson Bell and Bentote 
 
 
Quorum = 3 members 
 

 
 
THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998: 
 

Please note that the Human Rights Act 1998 makes it unlawful for the Council to act 
in a way incompatible with any of the Convention rights protected by the Act unless it 
could not have acted otherwise.  
 
In arriving at the recommendations to grant or refuse permission, careful 
consideration has been given to the rights set out in the European Convention on 
Human Rights including Article 6 (right to a fair trial), Article 8 (right to respect for 
private and family life), Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination in enjoyment of 
convention rights) and Article 1 of the first Protocol (the right to peaceful enjoyment 
of possessions). 
 
The Council is of the opinion that either no such rights have been interfered with or 
where there is an interference with the rights of an applicant or objector, such 
interference is considered necessary for any of the following reasons:- 
 

 The protection of rights and freedoms 

of others 

 Public safety 

 The protection of health or morals 

 The prevention of crime or disorder 

 The economic well being of the 

country. 

 

 
It is also considered that such action is proportional to the legitimate aim and in the 
public interest. 



 
GENERAL GUIDANCE ON THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE: 
 
Background 
 
The Planning Committee meets on average once every four weeks.  The 
membership of the Committee is drawn from elected City Councillors. 
 
The Council’s Constitution states that the vast majority of applications will be 
determined by the Planning officers (which are sometimes known as “delegated 
decisions”).  However, if certain criteria are met from the Constitution, some 
applications (about 5%) are referred to Committee for determination, rather than 
officers. 
 
As part of the Winchester District includes the South Downs National Park (SDNP), 
the Committee can also determine applications from this area on behalf of the 
National Park Authority. 
 
At the virtual meeting 
 
At the start of the Committee meeting, the Councillors and officers will be introduced.  
Any Councillor’s declarations of interest will also be announced at this point.  If the 
interest is considered by the Councillor to be significant, he/she will leave the virtual 
meeting when it reaches that item on the agenda. 
 
Timing 
 
The Committee considers many applications and scrutinises each one thoroughly.  
However, to prevent waiting unnecessarily through other people’s applications, 
where work demands it, agendas will be split into morning and afternoon sessions.  
The morning session will usually start at 9.30am and, where applicable, the agenda 
will set out those items which the Committee will not consider before 2.00pm in the 
afternoon.  Further details are set out below. 
 
The Officer’s presentation 
 
On each item, the planning case officer will introduce the application to the 
Committee.  They will concentrate on showing details of the proposals with the aid of 
projected visual material, including photographs of the site and plans.  The length 
and details of the presentation at the meeting will be proportionate to the nature and 
scale of the proposal.  The officer will make a recommendation to the Committee to 
either approve or refuse the application and, in the latter case, will state the reasons 
for this. 
 
The officer is required to make a recommendation and the presentation will include 
material to explain why the scheme is being recommended for permission or refusal.  
However, officers will not restate the information set out in the report which relates to 
the assessment of the planning merits of the case.  Specialist officers dealing with 
issues such as landscape, design and historic environment may also be available at 



Committee to provide advice on such matters and a legal representative will attend 
all Planning Committee meetings. 
 
Public participation: 
 
There will be a period of public participation, as follows: 

Objectors (3 minutes in total), 

Parish Council representatives (3 minutes), 

Ward Members (local District Councillors)/Cabinet Members (5 minutes each), 

and supporters of the application (3 minutes in total). 
 
The process is controlled by procedures to ensure fairness to both objectors and 
supporters.  To register to speak at the virtual meeting, please contact the Public 
Speaking Co-ordinator on 01962 848 339 by 4:30pm THREE clear working days 
before the meeting, in order to allow the virtual meeting to be managed as efficiently 
as possible. 
 
For example, if a meeting is held on a Thursday, the deadline for registering to speak 
would be 4:30pm on the Friday the preceding week. 
 
Following registration, you will receive an email from 
chairperson@winchester.gov.uk confirming you are able to take part and giving you 
further details about how to join via Microsoft Teams – which is the City Councils 
chosen virtual solution for holding of meetings.  You will also be advised about 
meeting etiquette regarding participating in a virtual meeting and a troubleshooting 
guide in case of any technical issues. 
 
For members of the public, you will be required to use the same name for joining the 
Teams meeting as you gave when registering to speak, failure to do so may mean 
you will not be allowed to virtually enter the meeting. 
 
After each speaker’s category, there will be an opportunity for the Committee to ask 
questions of the speakers, if the Committee considers it necessary to clarify any 
matters of fact that arise. 
 
Aside from this, the Committee will not enter into any further discussion with 
members of the public. 
 
The names of members of the public etc who have registered to address committee 
meetings will appear in the minutes as part of the public record, which will be 
included on the Council’s website.  Those wishing to address a committee meeting 
who object to their names being made available in this way must notify the 
Democratic Services Officer either when registering to speak, or within 10 days of 
this meeting. 
 
The meeting will be audio streamed on the day and you will be able to listen to the 
meeting as it happens and at the conclusion of the meeting the recording can be 
accessed immediately and is then available for playback thereafter. The audio 
stream is accessed from the meetings page on the Council’s website. 
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=137 

mailto:chairperson@winchester.gov.uk
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=137


 
Members’ Questions 
 
After the officers’ presentation and public participation there will be an opportunity for 
the Councillors on the Committee to ask questions of the officers and clarification, if 
necessary, of public speakers. 
 
The Councillors’ Debate 
 
The Councillors will then debate the application and may pick up any issues raised 
during public participation before a vote is taken to either; 
 

 permit, 

 refuse or 

 defer (usually for a site visit or for further information).  If a site visit is required 
then the item will usually be deferred to the next meeting of the Committee to 
allow it to be reconsidered after the site visit has been held. The item will be 
reconsidered in its entirety, including public participation where those 
registering to speak will be given the opportunity to address the Committee. 

If the Committee votes against the officer’s recommendation, the reasons for this will 
be discussed and explained.  Usually the precise wording for the reasons for refusal 
will be delegated to the Service Lead Built Environment in consultation with the 
Chair.  A summary of the Committee’s reasons will be included in the minutes. 
 
Voting: 
 
Every Member has one vote when a matter before the meeting requires a decision.  
In the event of an equality of votes, the Chair may exercise a casting vote and that 
vote may be cast in any way they wish. 
 
A Member may abstain from voting, or vote differently from how they may have 
indicated during the debate, without further explanation.  The way each Member 
voted will not be recorded in the minutes, unless a motion to have a Recorded Vote 
has been passed. 
 
After the meeting 
 
After the meeting, the minutes will be available from the Council’s website and a 
decision notice will be sent to the applicant/agent.  Applicants have a right of appeal 
against a Committee decision to refuse planning permission, or any conditions 
imposed on permission, and any appeal will be considered by an Inspector 
appointed by the Secretary of State.  Where an application has been permitted, there 
is no opportunity for objectors to appeal, other than to the Court by way of judicial 
review on a point of law. 
 
 
 



FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
 
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the Council’s website. The 
meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Access to Information Procedure Rules within the Council's 
Constitution for further information, which is available to view on the Council’s 
website. 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4


 
 

 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 17 December 2020 
Attendance: 
 

Councillors 
Evans (Chairperson) 

 
Rutter 
Clear 
Gordon-Smith 
 

Laming 
McLean 
Read 
 

 
 
Deputy Members: 
 
Councillor Pearson (as deputy for Ruffell) 
 
Other Members that addressed the meeting: 
 
Councillor Lumby 

 
Full audio recording and video recording 
 
 

 
1.    APOLOGIES AND DEPUTY MEMBERS  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ruffell, with Councillor 
Pearson attending as standing deputy member. 
 

2.    DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS  
 
No disclosures of interest were declared. 
 

3.    MEMBERSHIP OF SUB-COMMITTEES ETC  
 
There was no action to report under this item. 
 

4.    MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 19 November 
2020 be approved and adopted. 

 
5.    WHERE APPROPRIATE, TO ACCEPT THE UPDATE SHEET AS AN 

ADDENDUM TO THE REPORT  
 
The committee agreed to receive the Update Sheet as an addendum to Report 
PDC1175. 

Public Document Pack

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=2438&Ver=4


 
 

 
 

 
6.    PLANNING APPLICATIONS (WCC ITEMS 7 - 9, SDNP ITEM 11 & WCC 

ITEMS 12 &13 AND UPDATE SHEET  
 
A copy of each planning application decision is available to view on the council’s 
website under the respective planning application. 
 
The committee considered the following items: 
 
Applications outside the area of the South Downs National Park (WCC): 
 

7.    SITE OF FORMER CAPTAIN BARNARD, OTTERBOURNE ROAD, 
COMPTON, SO21 2RT  
(CASE NUMBER: 20/01781/FUL)  
 
Item 7: Construction of 64 bed Care Home (Use Class C2), landscaped gardens, 
parking and associated ancillary structures and works with access from 
Otterbourne Road 
Site of Former Captain Barnard, Otterbourne Road, Compton  
Case number: 20/01781/FUL 
 
The Service Lead - Built Environment referred Members to the Update Sheet 
which set out an additional consultation response from the Council’s Ecology 
Team and amendments to condition 2 and condition 5. 
 
During public participation, James Marshall and Councillor Tim Hunt (Compton 
and Shawford Parish Council and also on behalf of David Schapira and the 
South Downs Local Residents’ Association) spoke in objection to the application 
and Nick Billington (agent) spoke in support of the application and answered 
Members’ questions thereon.  
 
At the conclusion of debate, the committee agreed to grant permission for the 
reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the Report, the 
Update Sheet. 
 

8.    ERDELY, CLEASE WAY, COMPTON DOWN, WINCHESTER, SO21 2AL 
(CASE NUMBER: 20/01502/FUL)  
 
Item 8: Variation of Conditions 11 and 12 (15/02867/FUL). Alterations to the 
patio, landscaping, boundary treatments, and closure of one access to the site  
Erdely, Clease Way, Compton Down, Winchester 
Case number: 20/01502/FUL 
 
The Service Lead - Built Environment referred Members to the Update Sheet 
which set out a representation received from an objector and a full additional 
condition 8 for inclusion. 
 
During public participation, Richard Mandair (applicant) spoke in support of the 
application and answered Members’ questions thereon. 
 

Page 10



 
 

 
 

At the conclusion of debate, the committee agreed to grant permission for the 
reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the Report and 
the Update Sheet. 
 

9.    38 HARROW DOWN, BADGER FARM, SO22 4LZ  
(CASE NUMBER: 20/01381/HOU)  
 
Item 9: (Amended plans received 09/10/2020) GARAGE CONVERSION AND 
EXTENSION.  
38 Harrow Down, Badger Farm, Winchester 
Case number: 20/01381/HOU 
 
The Service Lead - Built Environment referred Members to the Update Sheet 
which set out one further letter of objection received on 15 December 2020 and 
outlined the case officer’s response to the points raised. 
 
In addition, two verbal updates were made at the meeting as follows: that a 
recount of objections received had been carried out and there had been six 
letters of objection received from separate households and not seven as stated 
in the report; and that a further letter of representation had been received 
regarding the size of the proposed parking space.  However, the planning officer 
was satisfied that the space met the parking size standards required.  
 
During public participation, Councillor Fenella Jarvis (Badger Farm Parish 
Council) spoke in objection to the application and Marek Bobrowski (applicant) 
spoke in support of the application and answered Members’ questions thereon. 
 
At the conclusion of debate, the committee agreed to grant permission for the 
reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the Report, the 
Update Sheet and the verbal update, subject to an additional condition that the 
two car parking spaces (one existing and one new), as shown on the approved 
plans, must be retained and used for parking purposes only. 
 
 
Application inside the area of the South Downs National Park (SDNP): 
 

10.    THE OLD BANK, HIGH STREET, WEST MEON, GU32 1LJ  
(CASE NUMBER: SDNP/19/05173/FUL)  
 
Item 11: (AMENDED PLANS received 31/07/2020) Erection of single detached 
dwelling. 
The Old Bank, High Street West Meon. 
Case number: SDNP/19/05173/FUL 
 
At its meeting on 19 November 2020, the committee had agreed to defer the 
determination of this item to allow for a pre-emptive site visit to take place to 
view the application in the context of its location and to assess access and 
overlooking issues. 
 
 
 

Page 11



 
 

 
 

A site visit was attended by all members of the committee, except Councillor 
Pearson.  However, as Councillor Pearson was nominated as a deputy at the 
time this application initially came before committee, he clarified that he was 
aware of the site and would participate in the determination of this item.  The 
application was before the committee for further consideration. 
 
The Service Lead - Built Environment referred Members to the Update Sheet 
which set out two further letters of representation received in relation to the 
measurement of the riparian buffer and the accuracy of plans and outlined the 
case officer and other relevant officer’s response to the points raised. 
 
During public participation, Neil March (Southern Planning Practice) spoke in 
objection to the application and Richard Lowe (agent) spoke in support of the 
application and answered Members’ questions thereon. 
 
During public participation, Councillor Lumby spoke on this item as Ward 
Member. 
 
In summary, Councillor Lumby highlighted the location of the site and thanked 
members for attending a site visit to view the proposal further.  He stated that the 
site had been listed as previously developed land but contested that this was not 
the case as it had been open space and was therefore not in accordance with 
policy SD25. 
 
Councillor Lumby expressed concern regarding the measurement of the buffer 
zone which had been recorded at five metres and queried if this reading was 
taken on the flat.  In addition, he raised concerns that the plans were misleading, 
that light spillage would have an adverse impact on neighbouring properties and 
wildlife habitats and made reference to the enforceability of proposed conditions 
to support the dark night skies policy, the adequacy of parking proposals and 
access for emergency and high sided vehicles. 
 
In conclusion, Councillor Lumby urged the committee to refuse the application as 
he considered it was not positioned on previously developed land and was 
contrary to policies SD1, SD2, SD9, SD11 and SD25. 
 
In response to Members’ questions, the Council’s Ecologist provided clarification 
regarding the measurement of the riparian buffer zone and the impact of light 
spillage on the wildlife corridor from the use of the bi-fold doors.  
 
At the conclusion of debate, the committee agreed to grant permission for the 
reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the Report and 
the Update Sheet, subject to an addition to condition 10 to ensure that the 
riparian buffer zone be fenced off and the insertion of the two standard 
informatives. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 
 

 
 

 
Applications outside the area of the South Downs National Park (WCC): 
 

11.    13 HARESTOCK CLOSE, WINCHESTER, SO22 6NP  
(CASE NUMBER: 20/00807/HOU)  
 
Item 12: (AMENDED PLANS RECEIVED 15.10.2020) First floor side extension  
13 Harestock Close, Winchester. 
Case number: 20/00807/HOU 
 
The Service Lead - Built Environment referred Members to the Update Sheet 
which set out an amendment to the height of the eaves referred to under section 
‘Impact on character of area and neighbouring property’ to read 2 - 2.3m height 
to eaves and not 2 - 2.2m as stated. 
 
At the conclusion of debate, the committee agreed to grant permission for the 
reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the Report and 
the Update Sheet. 
 

12.    1 GLEBE VILLAS, TRAMPERS LANE, NORTH BOARHUNT, PO17 6BZ 
(CASE NUMBER: 20/01590/OUT)  
 
Item 13: Erection of single detached (3 or 4 bed) dwelling to the side of No 1 
Glebe Villas, including details of the layout and access to the site, and the 
installation of a new sewage treatment plant. 
1 Glebe Villas, Trampers Lane, North Boarhunt, 
Case number: 20/01590/OUT 
 
The Service Lead - Built Environment referred Members to the Update Sheet 
which set out an update from Ecology and an amendment to the conclusion and 
refusal reason 3 to that set out in the report. 
 
During public participation, Chris Ward (agent) spoke in support of the 
application and answered Members’ questions thereon. 
 
At the conclusion of debate, the committee agreed to refuse permission for the 
reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the Report and 
the Update Sheet. 
 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the decisions taken on the Planning Applications in relation to 

those applications outside and inside the area of the South Downs 
National Park be agreed as set out in the decision relating to each item, 
subject to the following: 

 
(i) That in respect of item 9 (38 Harrow Down, Badger Farm: 
Case number: 20/01381/HOU) permission be granted for the 
reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in 
the Report, the Update Sheet and the verbal update, subject to an 

Page 13



 
 

 
 

additional condition that the two car parking spaces (one existing 
and one new), as shown on the approved plans, must be retained 
and used for parking purposes only. 

 
(ii) That in respect of item 11 (The Old Bank, High Street, West 
Meon: Case number: SDNP/19/05173/FUL) permission be granted 
for the reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set 
out in the Report and the Update Sheet, subject to an addition to 
condition 10 to ensure that the riparian buffer zone be fenced off 
and the insertion of the two standard informatives. 

 
  

13.    CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 2281 - LAND AT 
FALLOWFIELDS, COMPTON STREET, COMPTON (PDC1172)  

  
RESOLVED: 

 
  That, having taken into consideration the representations  
 received, Tree Preservation Order 2281 be confirmed. 
 
 
 
 
The virtual meeting commenced at 9.30am, adjourned between 12.15pm and 
2:00pm and concluded at 4.50pm. 
 
 

Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 
 

 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 21 January 2021 
Attendance: 
 

Councillors 
Evans (Chair) 

 
Rutter 
Clear 
Gordon-Smith 
Laming 
 

McLean 
Read 
Ruffell, (except for item 13) 
 

 
 
Other Members that addressed the meeting: 

 
Councillors Bell, Cook, Hiscock and Weir. 

 
Apologies for absence: 

 
All members were in attendance. 

 
Full audio recording and video recording 
 
 

 
1.    DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS  

 
Councillor Laming declared a personal (but not prejudicial) interest in respect of 
item 9 (The Garden House, Southdown Road, Shawford – case number 
20/01589/FUL) due to his role as a Ward Member. He took part in the discussion 
and vote thereon. 
 
Councillor Evans declared a personal (but not prejudicial) interest in respect of 
item 11 (16 Cold Harbour Close, Wickham – case number: 20/02156/HOU) due 
to her role as a Ward Member and Wickham Parish Councillor. In addition, 
Councillor Evans stated that John Farrow, speaking in objection to the 
application, had invited her to view the proposal from his garden, which she 
attended following the Government’s social distance guidelines with Councillor 
Clear and in the absence of Mr Farrow. Councillor Evans stated that she had 
taken no part in any discussions during or after the visit, nor in the Parish 
Council’s objection to the application and therefore took part in the consideration 
of this item and voted thereon. 
  
Councillor Clear declared a personal (but not prejudicial) interest in respect of 
item 11 (16 Cold Harbour Close, Wickham – case number: 20/02156/HOU) due 
to her role as a Ward Member and Chair of Wickham Parish Council. In addition, 
Councillor Clear stated that John Farrow, speaking in objection to the 
application, had invited her to view the proposal from his garden, which she 
attended following the Government’s social distance guidelines with Councillor 

Public Document Pack

Page 15

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=2465&Ver=4


 
 

 
 

Evans and in the absence of Mr Farrow. Councillor Clear stated that she had 
taken no part in any discussions during or after the visit, nor in the Parish 
Council’s objection to the application and therefore took part in the consideration 
of this item and voted thereon. 
 
Councillor Ruffell declared a prejudicial interest in respect of item 13 (Manor 
House, High Street, Meonstoke – case number: SDNP/20/05327/TCA) as he 
was a close associate of the applicant and a fellow Ward Member for Upper 
Meon Valley. Councillor Ruffell took no part in the determination of this 
application, nor the discussion and vote thereon.  
 
Councillor Read declared a personal (but not prejudicial) interest in respect of 
item 13 (Manor House, High Street, Meonstoke – case number: 
SDNP/20/05327/TCA) as he was an acquaintance of the applicant in his 
capacity as fellow city councillor. However, Councillor Read stated that he had 
taken no part in any discussions regarding the application and therefore took 
part in the consideration of this item and voted thereon. 
 

2.    MEMBERSHIP OF SUB-COMMITTEES ETC  
 
There was no action to report under this item. 
 

3.    MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the minutes of the additional meeting held on 2 December 

2020 be approved and adopted 
 

4.    WHERE APPROPRIATE, TO ACCEPT THE UPDATE SHEET AS AN 
ADDENDUM TO THE REPORT  
 
The committee agreed to receive the Update Sheet as an addendum to Report 
PDC1176. 
 

5.    PLANNING APPLICATIONS (WCC ITEMS 7 - 9 AND ITEM 11 & SDNP ITEMS 
12 AND 13 & UPDATE SHEET REFERS) (PDC1176)  
 
A copy of each planning application decision is available to view on the council’s 
website under the respective planning application. 
 
The committee considered the following items: 
 
Applications outside the area of the South Downs National Park (WCC): 
 

6.    1-4 WOODPECKERS DRIVE, WINCHESTER, SO22 5JJ  
(CASE NUMBER: 20/01554/FUL)  
 
Item 7: (Amended plans) Demolition of existing four dwelling houses and the 
erection of nineteen dwellings, with associated access, parking and landscaping 
1-4 Woodpeckers Drive, Winchester 

Page 16



 
 

 
 

Case number: 20/01554/FUL 
 
During public participation, Elizabeth and Roger King and Russell Blackman 
spoke in objection to the application and Chris Rees (applicant) spoke in support 
of the application and all answered Members’ questions thereon.  
 
During public participation, Councillor Weir spoke on this item as Ward Member. 
  
In summary, Councillor Weir made reference to the three other contiguous 
development sites in this area by the same developer: Meadowlands, The Close 
and 6 Woodpeckers Drive, as well as the proposed application. She stated that 
policy DM14 had not been applied on these sites and that the lack of affordable 
housing contribution, as specified in policy CP3, was wholly unacceptable. In 
addition, Councillor Weir made reference to the s106 agreement, the covenant 
for the previous developments, market uplifts and the affordable housing viability 
assessment for the proposed application which needed to be questioned. 
 
In conclusion, Councillor Weir urged the committee to refuse the application as 
she considered it did not accord with policy CP3. 
 
In response to Members’ questions, the Service Lead: Estates provided 
clarification regarding the viability assessment report, existing use values and 
expectations in respect of land values.  
 
At the conclusion of debate, the committee agreed to grant permission for the 
reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the Report. 
 

7.    HOLLY TREE COTTAGE, PARK ROAD, WINCHESTER, SO23 7BE  
(CASE NUMBER: 20/01901/HOU)  
 
Item 8: Rear two storey extension to property 
Holly Tree Cottage, Park Road Winchester.   
Case number: 20/01901/HOU 
 
During public participation, Sean McPike spoke in objection to the application 
and Tom Oldroyd (applicant) spoke in support of the application and answered 
Members’ questions thereon. 
 
During public participation, Councillor Hiscock spoke on this item as Ward 
Member. 
  
In summary, Councillor Hiscock stated that he was speaking on behalf of a 
number of local residents who had misgivings about how the proposed 
application would impact on their lives with particular reference to how the 
application had come forward and concerns regarding their loss of privacy.  
 
Councillor Hiscock also referred to the strong concerns expressed in relation to 
the proposed balcony which he stated would be built in an area where balconies 
were not common place. This was seen as a first floor platform which he 
considered would result in overlooking into the gardens of neighbouring 

Page 17



 
 

 
 

properties. In addition, reference was made to the potential for light spillage from 
the first floor balcony at night.   
 
In conclusion, Councillor Hiscock sought clarification surrounding the proposal 
for a garden room which was not shown within the plans and the cumulative 
effect of all the developments on site. 
 
At the conclusion of debate, the committee agreed to grant permission for the 
reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the Report, 
subject to an additional condition 5 to read that, no external lighting be installed 
to the first floor balcony area without submitting details to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval regarding the type of lighting, illuminent etc. Development 
to be undertaken in accordance with these approved details. 
 

8.    THE GARDEN HOUSE, SOUTHDOWN ROAD, SHAWFORD, SO21 2BX 
(CASE NUMBER: 20/01589/FUL)  
 
Item 9:  2 No. dwellings, garages, landscaping and access. Demolition of 
existing dwelling. 
The Garden House, Southdown Road, Shawford   
Case number: 20/01589/FUL 
 
During public participation, Gary Bradford (agent) spoke in support of the 
application and answered Members’ questions thereon.  
 
During public participation, Councillor Bell spoke on this item as Ward Member. 
 
In summary, Councillor Bell stated that she was speaking on behalf of the local 
Residents’ Association who had a number of general concerns in respect of the 
conditions set out in the report and suggested that the Compton and Shawford 
Village Design Statement (VDS) be given greater consideration. She made 
reference to residents’ concerns in respect of drainage, with inadequate road 
surface water drainage, landscaping and the construction management plan. For 
example, construction vehicles parked on the surrounding grass verges whereby 
most failed to rectify the damage caused to the verges upon the completion of 
works. 
 
In conclusion, Councillor Bell asked that in order to control further drainage 
issues, conditions should state that there ‘must’ be permeable hard standing and 
soakaways due to existing problems and that a surface water and infiltration 
assessment should be carried out prior to further consideration of the 
application.   
 
At the conclusion of debate, the committee agreed to grant permission for the 
reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the Report.   
 

9.    16 COLD HARBOUR CLOSE, WICKHAM, PO17 5PT  
(CASE NUMBER: 20/02156/HOU)  
 
Item 11: First floor rear extension 
16 Cold Harbour Close, Wickham   

Page 18



 
 

 
 

Case number: 20/02156/HOU 
 
The Service Lead - Built Environment referred Members to the Update Sheet 
which set out that one further letter of support had been received.  
 
During public participation, John Farrow and Andrew Hudson spoke in objection 
to the application and Mr C Duffy (applicant) spoke in support of the application 
and answered Members’ questions thereon. 
 
At the conclusion of debate, the committee agreed to grant permission for the 
reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the Report and 
the Update Sheet. 
 
Applications inside the area of the South Downs National Park (SDNP): 
 

10.    28 CHURCHFIELDS, TWYFORD, SO21 1NN  
(CASE NUMBER: SDNP/20/01416/FUL)  
 
Item 12: Proposed detached replacement dwelling (Amended plans received 
9/11/20) 
28 Churchfields, Twyford 
Case number: SDNP/20/01416/FUL 
 
The Service Lead - Built Environment referred Members to the Update Sheet 
which set out the background of an earlier, dismissed appeal on the same site, 
including an extract of the appeal decision and a full copy of the appeal decision; 
clarification from the South Downs National Park Authority in respect of the 
settlement boundary; and one further letter of representation raising no new 
points. 
 
During public participation, Rob Powter (applicant) spoke in support of the 
application and answered Members’ questions thereon. 
 
During public participation, Councillor Cook spoke on this item as a Ward 
Member. 
 
In summary, Councillor Cook stated that Twyford (including the South Downs 
National Park (SDNP)) was without a settlement boundary until the 
neighbourhood plan was adopted. Councillor Cook stated that the proposal was 
within a built up area of the village and considered that, although the roof height 
had been lowered and some of the bulk reduced, it was still contrary to policy 
due to its size and appearance. In addition, she considered that it did not reflect 
positively with the character and street scene of the area and would result in an 
unacceptable impact to residents of Churchfields and The Crescent.  She 
believed it would set a precedent by allowing development with no garden 
amenity space and suggested that existing parking issues would be further 
exacerbated due to the number of bedrooms proposed. 
 
In conclusion, Councillor Cook believed this to be an overbearing, excessive and 
cramped form of development and urged the committee to refuse the application. 
 

Page 19



 
 

 
 

At the conclusion of debate, the committee agreed to grant permission for the 
reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set out in the Report and 
the Update Sheet. 
 

11.    MANOR HOUSE, HIGH STREET, MEONSTOKE, SO32 3NH  
(CASE NUMBER: SDNP/20/05327/TCA)  
 
Item 13: Tree works taken directly from the tree survey schedule, as detailed in 
the report.  
Manor House, High Street, Meonstoke  
Case number: SDNP/20/05327/TCA 
 
During public participation, Mrs Lumby (applicant) was present to answer 
questions to support the application but did not wish to address the committee to 
raise any additional points.  
 
At the conclusion of debate, the committee agreed to raise no objection to the 
application for the reasons set out in the Report. 
 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the decisions taken on the Planning Applications in relation to 
those applications outside and inside the area of the South Downs 
National Park be agreed as set out in the decision relating to each item, 
subject to the following: 

 
(i) That in respect of item 8 (Holly Tree Cottage, Park Road, 
Winchester: Case number:  20/01901/HOU) permission be granted 
for the reasons and subject to the conditions and informatives set 
out in the Report, subject to an additional condition 5 to read that 
no external lighting be installed to the first floor balcony area 
without submitting details to the Local Planning Authority for 
approval regarding the type of lighting, illuminent etc. Development 
to be undertaken in accordance with these approved details.   

    
 
 
The virtual meeting commenced at 9:30am, adjourned between 1:00pm and 
2:00pm and concluded at 3:45pm. 
 
 

Chair 
 
 
 
1.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01850/FUL 
 

 

  
Case No: 20/01850/FUL  
Proposal Description: Erection of new detached dwelling and detached garage with 

car parking and use of existing access road from Lower Chase 
Road. 

Address: Collingwood Lower Chase Road Swanmore Southampton 
Hampshire 

Parish, or Ward if within 
Winchester City: 

 Swanmore 

Applicants Name: Mr Richard Paine 
Case Officer: Rose Lister 
Date Valid: 30 September 2020 

Recommendation: Permit 
 

 
Link to Planning Documents : https://planningapps.winchester.gov.uk/online-
applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application 
 
Pre Application Advice:  
 

 
© Crown Copyright and database rights Winchester City Council License 100019531 

 
  

Page 21

Agenda Item 7

https://planningapps.winchester.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
https://planningapps.winchester.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application


WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01850/FUL 
 

 

General Comments 
 
 
Application is reported to Committee due to the number of objections received. 
 
Amended Plans were submitted 02.12.2020 and the application was re-advertised. The 
amended plans revised the location of the access, the positioning and the design of the 
proposed dwelling. Some planting is shown on the amended site plan. 

 
 
Site Description 
 
The application site is located to the rear of Collingwood and would be accessed off the 
new road leading to the new allotments for the village that are soon to be constructed.  
The site is approximately 0.07 ha in size and currently forms part of the garden amenity 
space for Collingwood. 
 
Proposal 
 
The proposal is for one new dwelling and associated development.  
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
06/01819/FUL - Proposed first floor extension, single storey side and rear extension – 
permitted 06.07.2006 
 
16/00945/OUT - Outline application for the development of part of the site (0.26) for 
residential use comprising 5 houses and full application for the change of use of part of the 
site (0.81 ha.) to public open space with associated access, parking and landscaping. – 
permitted 23.01.2017 
 
19/02397/REM – Details of the siting, design and external appearance of the buildings and 
the landscaping of the residential site layout. – permitted 07.02.2020 
 
 
Consultations 
Service Lead for Environment Services - Engineers: Drainage:  
No objection subject to condition 5 
 
HCC: Highways: 
No objection.  
 
Service Lead for Environment Services - Ecology: 
No objection subject to conditions 7, 11 and 12 
 
 
Representations: 
 
Swanmore Parish Council - Objection 

 Encroachment into Public Open space 

Page 22



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01850/FUL 
 

 

 Highways /turning 

 Contrary to Village Design Statement (VDS) 
 
This was updated following submission of the revised plans to: 

 Contrary to VDS 

 No need for additional housing in the village. 
 
District Councillor Gemmell objected to the proposal for the following reasons: 

 Impact on neighbouring amenity 

 Drainage 

 Out of character for the area 
 

District Councillor Western objected to the proposal for the following reasons: 

 Out of character for the area 

 Drainage 

 Impact on ecology 

 Impact on neighbours 
 
17 letters received from 12 households objecting to the application for the following 
material planning reasons:  

 Out of character for the area 

 Poor design 

 Poor layout 

 Impact on neighbouring amenities 

 Contrary to VDS 

 No proposed landscaping 

 Dwelling would be too large 

 Encroachment into the Public Open Space 

 Drainage 

 Construction disturbance 

 Application is back land development 

 Over development 

 Loss of green space 

 Increase in traffic along Lower Chase Road 

 Contrary to policy 
 
Reasons aside not material to planning and therefore not addressed in this report 

 Loss of property value 

 Application is opportunistic 

 Application would set a precedent 
 

 
 

 
Relevant Planning Policy: 
 
Winchester Local Plan Part 1 – Joint Core Strategy 
DS1, MTRA2, CP11, CP13, CP15, CP16 
 

Page 23



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01850/FUL 
 

 

Winchester Local Plan Part2 – Development Management and Site Allocations 
DM1, DM2, DM15, DM16, DM17 
 
National Planning Policy Guidance/Statements: 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance 
Swanmore Village Design Statement 
High Quality Places SPD 
 
Planning Considerations 
 
 
Principle of development 
Paragraph 47 of the NPPF requires that applications for planning permission be 
determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
The development is situated in the settlement boundary of Swanmore where the principle 
of development is acceptable, provided that the development is in accordance with the 
policies of the Development Plan and unless material planning reasons indicate 
otherwise. 
 
Impact on character of area, design and layout 
The proposal is for the construction of a new dwelling to the rear of Collingwood. The 
proposed dwelling would be accessed from the new development adjacent to the site. 
Amended plans have been submitted to change the layout and elevations and include 
additional planting.  
 
The proposal would introduce a new dwelling to the rear of the dwellings that front the 
main road. There are 2 existing dwellings to the rear of the new development that face the 
new allotments and this creates an established relationship between frontage and in-depth 
residential development in the immediate locality. It is considered that the proposed 
development would reflect this character and is therefore in keeping with the spatial 
characteristics of the immediate built environment.   
 
Concerns from third party representations have been raised that the proposals would 
result in encroachment into the public open space to the rear of the site. The amended 
plans have re-arranged the location of the access ensuring that there would be no 
encroachment into the open space to the rear.  
 
The proposed dwelling would be of a similar design, material finish and scale of the 
dwellings adjacent at the new site which is considered to be acceptable. However it is 
considered appropriate to condition materials to ensure high quality materials are used to 
reflect the sensitive countryside surroundings. (condition 3) . 
 
Based upon the above assessment the proposed development is considered to reflect the 
spatial characteristics of the immediate surroundings and is of a scale, design and 
appearance in keeping with the existing character of properties in the area. The proposal 
therefore complies with the design policies of the Local Plan, the High Quality Places SPD 
and the VDS. 

Page 24



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01850/FUL 
 

 

 
 
Impact on neighbouring property 
The proposed development will be visible from the neighbouring property to the north and 
west of the application site. Concerns from third party representations have been raised 
in regard to overlooking, overbearing and loss of light caused by the new dwelling on the 
neighbouring properties.  
 
The amended plans have changed the design of the proposed dwelling so that there 
would be no windows on the first floor that would directly overlook the neighbouring 
properties. The proposed dwelling has also been repositioned to be further way from the 
neighbouring properties. It is considered that this would prevent an overbearing and loss 
of light impact to the neighbouring amenity spaces. To ensure that this is maintained a 
condition restricting additional windows on the first floor of the north east and north west 
elevations is considered appropriate (condition 13).  
 
Additional landscaping has been shown on the amended site plan to increase screening 
around the site as well as elevation changes to ensure that there would be no windows 
directly facing the neighbouring properties. High level roof lights are proposed on the rear 
elevation to serve W/Cs on the first floor. These are shown to be obscure glazed on the 
plans. A condition is proposed to ensure that these are obscure glazed to Pilkington level 
4 to prevent overlooking (condition 14). A further condition is proposed for details of the 
planting shown as well as a timescale for planting (condition 6).  
 
It is therefore considered that the proposed dwelling would not result in unacceptable 
adverse impacts on the residential amenities of the neighbours by way of overlooking, 
overbearing or loss of light and the proposal therefore complies with policy DM17 of the 
LPP2 
 
Highways/Parking 

The proposal would be accessed off the new road created to serve the adjacent new 
development. A garage and 2 additional parking spaces are proposed to serve the 
development. It is considered that these would meet the requirements of the Residential 
Parking SPD and have raised no objection from HCC highways. Third party concerns 
have been raised regarding the parking layout and turning areas for the adjacent site. A 
turning plan has been submitted to demonstrate that a fire engine can turn within the 
space provided and that the proposed access would not impact this. Third party 
concerns were also raised regarding the removal of trees to the north. These trees have 
already been removed but this was permitted through the planning permission relating 
to the outline permission ref. 16/00945/OUT.  
 
It is considered that the amended plans have addressed the concerns raised. It is 
considered necessary to impose a condition requiring a construction management plan 
to ensure that construction activities limit the impact on the amenities of the surrounding 
dwellings (condition 8).    
 
Ecology 
The site is adjacent to a sensitive ecological area, as such ecology reports have been 
submitted that indicate that the site in has limited scope for protected species. 
Notwithstanding this conditions requiring a mitigation and enhancement plan as 
indicated within the ecology report is considered to be appropriate. It is also considered 

Page 25



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01850/FUL 
 

 

that an external lighting plan should be submitted for approval via condition (conditions 
7,11 and 12). 
 
Drainage 
The site is located within flood zone one and therefore unlikely to flood. The land is clay, 
silt and sand. No drainage information has been submitted therefore it is considered 
that details of the removal of foul and surface water should be submitted via condition to 
ensure sufficient drainage (condition 5).  
 
Nitrates 
The proposed development is within Winchester District where foul water is distributed 
into the European designated areas Solent SPAs/Ramsar sites via water treatment 
plants. In accordance with advice from Natural England and as detailed in Policy CP16 
of the Winchester City Council Local Plan Part 1 Joint Core Strategy a net increase in 
housing development within Winchester District is likely to result in impacts to the 
integrity of those sites through a consequent increase in Nitrates. A nitrate calculation 
has been conducted in relation to this. It has been demonstrated that the proposal 
would generate a surplus of nitrates and therefore mitigation is required. As such a 
Grampian condition in line with the Winchester City Council Position Statement on 
Nitrate Neutral Development has been agreed to secure appropriate mitigation prior to 
occupation (condition 4).  
 
 

 
Other Matters 

Equality 
 
Due regard should be given to the Equality Act 2010: Public Sector Equality Duty. 
Public bodies need to consciously think about the three aims of the Equality Duty as 
part of the process of decision-making. The weight given to the Equality Duty, compared 
to the other factors, will depend on how much that function affects discrimination, 
equality of opportunity and good relations and the extent of any disadvantage that 
needs to be addressed. The Local Planning Authority has given due regard to this duty 
and the considerations do not outweigh any matters in the exercise of our duty as 
statutory planning authority for the council. 
 
Conclusion 
The proposal accords with the Development Plan and the following policies MTRA2, 
DS1, CP13, CP11, CP16,  DM1, DM15, DM16, DM17, DM18 and the High Quality 
Places SDP and VDS. 

 
 
Recommendation 
  Approve subject to the following condition(s): 
 
 
Conditions 
 
01   The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission. 

Page 26



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01850/FUL 
 

 

Reason:  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended). 
 
02   The development hereby approved shall be constructed in accordance with the 
following plans: 
'Ecology assessment: Land to the rear of Collingwood, Lower Chase Road, Swanmore, 
Southampton, SO32 2PB' by Peach ecology dated 2nd December 2020 
200006 02 rev A 
200006 05 rev A 
200006 04 rev A 
200006 03 rev A 
4808/201 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt, to ensure that the proposed development is carried 
out in accordance with the plans and documents from which the permission relates to 
comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
03   No development shall take place until details and samples of the materials to be used 
in the construction of the external surfaces of the replacement dwelling hereby permitted 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason:  To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in the 
interests of the amenities of the area. 
 
04   The development hereby permitted shall NOT BE OCCUPIED until:  
a) A water efficiency calculation which demonstrates that no more than 110 litres of 
water per person per day shall be consumed within the development, and this calculation 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority  
b) A mitigation package addressing the additional nutrient input arising from the 
development has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Such mitigation package shall address all of the additional nutrient load imposed 
on protected European sites by the development and be implemented in full prior to first 
occupation and shall allow the Local Planning Authority to ascertain on the basis of the 
best available scientific evidence that such additional nutrient loading will not have an 
adverse effect on the integrity of the protected European Sites, having regard to the 
conservation objectives for those sites; and 
c)  All measures forming part of that mitigation have been secured and submitted to 
the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason: To accord with the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, and 
Policy CP11, CP16 and CP21 of the Winchester District Local Plan Part 1. 
 
05   Detailed proposals for the disposal of foul and surface water shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the commencement of the 
development hereby permitted. The approved details shall be fully implemented before 
occupation of the building. 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory provision of foul and surface water drainage. 
 
06   All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  The works shall be carried out before the use hereby permitted is 
commenced and prior to the completion of the development or in accordance with the 
programme agreed with the Local Planning Authority.  If within a period of five years after 
planting any tree or plant is removed, dies or becomes, in the opinion of the Local 

Page 27



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01850/FUL 
 

 

Planning Authority, seriously damaged, defective or diseased another tree or plant of the 
same species and size as that originally approved shall be planted at the same place, 
within the next planting season, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. 
Reason:  To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of a reasonable 
standard of landscape in accordance with the approved designs. 
 
07   The development shall be carried out in accordance with the measures, conclusions 
and recommendations set out within 'Ecology assessment: Land to the rear of 
Collingwood, Lower Chase Road, Swanmore, Southampton, SO32 2PB' by Peach ecology 
dated 2nd December 2020. Thereafter, the compensation measures shall be permanently 
maintained and retained in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason: To provide adequate mitigation and enhancement for protected species. 
 
08   No development shall take place until a Construction Environmental Management 
Plan (CEMP) which should be in accordance with the ecological mitigation measures set 
out in Environmental Statement and the ecological mitigation plan submitted for that 
Reserved Matters Application, has been submitted for each particular reserved matters 
application, and approved by the Local Planning Authority, to include details of: 
 

 parking and turning of  operative, construction and visitor vehicles  

 loading and unloading of plant and materials 

 storage of plant and materials 

 all deliveries and building works which should only be carried out between the hours 
of 0800 and 1800 hours Monday to Friday and 0800 and 1300 hours Saturday and 
no time on Sundays or recognised public holidays 

 details of proposed means of dust suppression and noise mitigation 

 details of measures to be taken to prevent mud from vehicles leaving the site during 
construction 

 the handling and management of construction waste 

 details of surface water runoff. 

 Construction lighting. 
 
Only the approved details shall be implemented during the construction period.  
 
Reason:   To ensure that development should not cause inconvenience to other highway 
users or result in any other significant harm to the amenity of local residents, or to existing 
natural features. 
 
 
09   Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted detailed information 
(in the form of SAP design stage data and a BRE water calculator) demonstrating that all 
homes meet the equivalent of Code 4 standard for energy and water (as defined by the 
ENE1 and WAT 1 in the Code for Sustainable Homes) shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be built in accordance 
with these findings. 
 
Reason: To ensure a sustainable form of development consistent with the objectives of 
The National Planning Policy Framework 2018  and to accord with the requirements of 
Policy CP11 of the Winchester District Local Plan Part 1 - Joint Core Strategy. 

Page 28



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01850/FUL 
 

 

 
10   Prior to the occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted detailed information (in the 
form of SAP "as built" stage data and a BRE water calculator) demonstrating that all 
homes meet the equivalent of Code 4 standard for energy and water (as defined by the 
ENE1 and WAT 1 in the Code for Sustainable Homes) shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall occupied in accordance 
with these findings. 
Reason: To ensure a sustainable form of development consistent with the objectives of 
The National Planning Policy Framework 2018  and to accord with the requirements of 
Policy CP11 of the Winchester District Local Plan Part 1 - Joint Core Strategy. 
 
11   An external lighting plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing prior to 
commencement of development. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the ecological value of the site is not adversely impacted upon by 
the development. 
 
12   Prior to commencement an ecological mitigation and enhancement plan shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning authority.  
 
Reason: To ensure that the ecological value of the site is not adversely impacted upon by 
the development. 
 
13 No windows additional windows shall be constructed in the first floor, north and 
northwest elevations of the property hereby permitted, unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the local planning authority. 
Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of the adjoining residential properties. 
 

14. The windows in the first floor north east elevation as shown on the approved plan 
200006 04 rev A of the development herby permitted must be glazed with obscure glass 
which achieves an obscuration level at least equivalent to Pilkington Obscure Glass 
Privacy Level 4 and the glazing shall thereafter be retained in this condition at all times 
  
REASON: To protect the privacy of the adjoining property and to prevent overlooking. 
 
 
 
Informatives: 
 
This permission is granted for the following reasons: 
The development is in accordance with the Policies and Proposals of the Development 
Plan set out below, and other material considerations do not have sufficient weight to 
justify a refusal of the application. In accordance with Section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, planning permission should therefore be granted. 
 
2. The Local Planning Authority has taken account of the following development plan 
policies and proposals:- 
Local Plan Part 1 Joint Core Strategy: DS1, CP11, CP13, CP16, DM1, DM2, DM15, 
DM16, DM17, DM27 
Local Plan Part 2:  

 

Page 29



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01850/FUL 
 

 

3. In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF Winchester City Council (WCC) take a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused on solutions. WCC 
work with applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by; 
-offering a pre-application advice service and, 
-updating applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their 
application and where possible suggesting solutions. 
 
4 Please be respectful to your neighbours and the environment when carrying out your 
development. Ensure that the site is well organised, clean and tidy and that facilities, 
stored materials, vehicles and plant are located to minimise disruption. Please consider 
the impact on your neighbours by informing them of the works and minimising air, light and 
noise pollution and minimising the impact of deliveries, parking and working on public or 
private roads. Any damage to these areas should be remediated as soon as is practically 
possible. 
 > For further advice on this please refer the Construction Code of Practice 
http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/ccs-ltd/what-is-the-ccs/code-of-considerate-
practice 
 
5. The applicant is advised that one or more of the Conditions attached to this permission 
need to be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority before works can 
commence on site.   Details, plans or samples required by Conditions should be submitted 
to the Council at least 8 weeks in advance of the start date of works to give adequate time 
for these to be dealt with.    If works commence on site before all of the pre-
commencement Conditions are discharged then this would constitute commencement of 
development without the benefit of planning permission and could result in Enforcement 
action being taken by the Council. 
 
6. During Construction, no materials should be burnt on site. Where allegations of statutory 
nuisance are substantiated by the Environmental Protection Team, an Abatement Notice 
may be served under The Environmental Protection Act 1990. The applicant is reminded 
that the emission of dark smoke through the burning of materials is a direct offence under 
The Clean Air Act 1993. 
 
7. All building works including demolition, construction and machinery or plant operation 
should only be carried out between the hours of 0800 and 1800 hrs Monday to Friday and 
0800 and 1300 hrs Saturday and at no time on Sundays or recognised public holidays. 
Where allegations of noise from such works are substantiated by the Environmental 
Protection Team, a Notice limiting the hours of operation under The Control of Pollution 
Act 1974 may be served. 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



20/01850/FUL Collingwood, Lower Chase Road
Swanmore, Southampton, Hampshire, SO32 2PB

Erection of new detached dwelling and detached garage with 
car parking and use of existing access road from Lower Chase 

Road.

P
age 31



P
age 32



P
age 33



P
age 34



P
age 35



P
age 36



P
age 37



Recommendation Permit

The proposal accords with Development Plan policies. 

P
age 38



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01498/FUL 
 

 

  
Case No: 20/01498/FUL  
Proposal Description: To extend the temporary permission granted for a period of two 

years (16/00957/FUL, Condition 1) 
Address: Hampshire Constabulary HQ Romsey Road Winchester 

Hampshire  
Parish, or Ward if within 
Winchester City: 

St Paul  

Applicants Name: Ms Anna Harper 
Case Officer: Catherine Watson 
Date Valid: 7 August 2020 

Recommendation: Application Permitted 
 

 
Link to Planning Documents : https://planningapps.winchester.gov.uk/online-
applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application 
 
Pre Application Advice: No 
 

 
 
© Crown Copyright and database rights Winchester City Council License 100019531 

 
  

Page 39

Agenda Item 8

https://planningapps.winchester.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
https://planningapps.winchester.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application


WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01498/FUL 
 

 

General Comments 
 
Application is reported to Committee due to the number of objections received 
contrary to the officer’s recommendation. 
 
Site Description 
 
The sales and marketing suite is part of a larger housing scheme for the demolition of the 
Hampshire Constabulary headquarters and the construction of housing and associated 
development.  The entire site measures approx. 2.35ha in total, whilst the area of the 
sales and marketing suite is approx. 1100sqm and is situated in the eastern part of the 
site adjacent to West End Terrace. 
 
Proposal 
 
The proposal is for the extension of time for the use of this part of the site as a sales and 
marketing suite.  Temporary consent was granted on 18th August 2016 for the erection of 
a temporary sales and marketing suite in this location, to expire on 12th August 2020.  
The application seeks an extension of that time scale for an additional 2 years, to expire 
on 12th August 2022.   
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
16/00957/FUL - Erection of temporary sales and marketing suite, with associated access, 
parking and landscape works.  Application Permitted 18.08.2016. 
 
Consultations 
 
None. 
 
Representations: 
 
City of Winchester Trust: 
“Is this really necessary?” (Comment submitted via WCC planning webpage). 
 
14 letters received objecting to the application for the following reasons:  

 Berkeley Homes already have consent for a relocated sales suite, why do they 
need to keep this one? 

 Retention of the existing sales suite undermines confidence that the West End 
Terrace access will be stopped up to vehicular traffic; 

 How will the 5 parking places associated with the retained sales suite to be 
accessed? 

 West End Terrace is a narrow road and the tarmac covered road at the entrance to 
the housing development would add considerably to traffic issues on the road; 

 Bollards to permanently stop up the West End Terrace access should be installed. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01498/FUL 
 

 

Reasons aside not material to planning and therefore not addressed in this report 

 Berkeley Homes are showing a lack of respect by continuing the use of the sales 
and marketing suite 

 
Relevant Planning Policy: 
 
Winchester Local Plan Part 1 – Joint Core Strategy (March 2013) 
Policy WT1 – Development Strategy for Winchester Town 
Policy CP13 – High Quality Design 
Policy CP20 – Heritage and Landscape Character 
 
Winchester Local Plan Part 2 – Development Management and Site Allocations (July 
2017) 
Policy DM1 – Location of New Development 
Policy DM15 – Local Distinctiveness 
Policy DM16 – Site Design Criteria 
Policy DM17 – Site Development Principles 
Policy DM18 – Access and Parking 
Policy DM27 – Development in Conservation Areas 
 
National Planning Policy Guidance/Statements: 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 – Section 72 
 
 
Planning Considerations 
 
Principle of development 
The application site is situated within the settlement boundary of Winchester, where 
development is acceptable in principle, subject to compliance with local and national 
planning policy.   
 
Design/layout 

The existing building, constructed as the sales and marketing suite in 2016 
(16/00957/FUL), remains as approved in terms of its size and form.  Signage has been 
installed on the front fascia to indicate that it is currently in use as the developer’s 
(Berkeley Homes) project offices.  The layout of the parking and landscaping has not 
altered from that approved in 2016 and consists of 6 dedicated spaces, although there 
is some ad-hoc parking closer to the front of the building.  The suite is accessed by 
vehicle via the main site entrance on Romsey Road and via a pedestrian gate on West 
End Terrace. 

 
Impact on character of area and neighbouring property 
The use of the existing building as project offices is considered to be in line with the 
original use as a sales and marketing suite.  The project offices will necessitate fewer 
vehicular trips to the site than the sales and marketing suite and the closing up of the West 
End Terrace access will result in a lesser impact on neighbour amenity. 
 
 
 

Page 41



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01498/FUL 
 

 

 
There has been very little change from the 2016 approved scheme.  Signage associated 
with the West End Terrace has been removed and the vehicular access blocked up with 
hoardings and a security gate with lock installed for the use of pedestrians, has been 
erected.  It is therefore not considered that there would be any significant additional 
change to the character of the area, as stipulated in policy CP13 of LPP1 and policies 
DM15, DM16 and DM17 of LPP2.  The retention of parking spaces on site is considered 
to comply with policy DM18 of LPP2. 
 
This part of the site is within the Winchester Conservation Area.  According to Section 72 
of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, and NPPF Section 
16, special attention should be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 
character or appearance of that area.  Policies CP20 of LPP1 and DM27 of LPP2 also 
require development to conserve or enhance the character and appearance of the area.  
It is considered that the development preserves the character of the conservation area as 
there is no significant change from that approved and therefore, no significant additional 
harm. 
 
It is not considered that there would be any significant increase in harm caused to 
neighbouring amenity, by the extension of the time period for use of the site.  In fact, due 
to the closing up of the vehicular access from West End Terrace, it is considered that this 
represents an improvement to neighbour amenity as traffic now has to use the Romsey 
Road access.  This therefore corresponds with the stipulations set out in policies DM17 
and DM18 of LPP2. 
 
Landscape/Trees 

There has been no significant change to the hard and soft landscaping on site and the 
existing trees have been retained as shown on the approved 2016 site plan.  When the 
temporary consent expires in 2022, the building must be demolished and the area 
landscaped.  A scheme of work to secure this will be required to be submitted prior to 
demolition of the building (Condition 1). 

 
Highways/Parking 

The closing up of the vehicular access is considered to represent an improvement to the 
highway, namely the narrow West End Terrace, as traffic now has to use the Romsey 
Road access and therefore, takes a great deal of visitor traffic away from the Terrace.  
This corresponds with the stipulations set out in policy DM18 of LPP2. 
 
Equality 
Due regard should be given to the Equality Act 2010: Public Sector Equality Duty. 
Public bodies need to consciously think about the three aims of the Equality Duty as 
part of the process of decision-making. The weight given to the Equality Duty, compared 
to the other factors, will depend on how much that function affects discrimination, 
equality of opportunity and good relations and the extent of any disadvantage that 
needs to be addressed. The Local Planning Authority has given due regard to this duty 
and the considerations do not outweigh any matters in the exercise of our duty as 
statutory planning authority for the council. 

 
 
 
 

Page 42



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/01498/FUL 
 

 

Recommendation 
Application Permitted, subject to the following condition(s): 
 
Conditions 
 
1. The permission hereby granted shall be for a limited period expiring on 13 August 
2022 on or before which date the marketing suite and any associated hardstanding, 
fencing and the land restored to its former condition in accordance with a scheme of work 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: The development is of a type not considered suitable for permanent retention. 
 
2. The development hereby approved shall be constructed in accordance with the 
following plans: 
 
Site Layout Sales & Marketing Suite Dwg No S861/SM/01 received 07.08.2020; 
Site Layout Sales & Marketing Suite Dwg No S861/SM/02 received 07.08.2020; 
Sales & Marketing Suite Planting Proposals Dwg No CLDL-2314-02-03 G received 
07.08.2020. 
 
Reason: In the interests of proper planning and for the avoidance of doubt. 
 
 
Informatives: 
 
1.   In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (July 2018), Winchester City Council 
(WCC) take a positive and proactive approach to development proposals, working with 
applicants and agents to achieve the best solution. To this end WCC: 
- offer a pre-application advice service and, 
- update applicants/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their 
application, where possible suggesting alternative solutions. 
In this instance a site meeting was carried out with the applicant. 
 
2.   The Local Planning Authority has taken account of the following development plan 
policies and proposals:- 
Local Plan Part 1 - Joint Core Strategy: CP13, CP20 
Local Plan Part 2 – Development Management and Site Allocations: DM1, DM15, DM16, 
DM17, DM18, DM27 
Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
NPPF Section 16 
 
3.   This permission is granted for the following reasons: 
The development is in accordance with the Policies and Proposals of the Development 
Plan set out above, and other material considerations do not have sufficient weight to 
justify a refusal of the application. In accordance with Section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, planning permission should therefore be granted. 
 
 
 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



20/01498/FUL – HAMPSHIRE CONSTABULARY HQ, 

ROMSEY ROAD, WINCHESTER.

P
age 45



SITE LOCATION PLAN

P
age 46



SITE LAYOUT

P
age 47



LANDSCAPING PLAN

P
age 48



PHOTOS OF PEDESTRIAN ACCESS ONTO WEST 

END TERRACE

P
age 49



PHOTOS OF PROJECT OFFICES

P
age 50



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/00084/HOU 
 

 

  
Case No: 20/00084/HOU  
Proposal Description: 1. Construction of a replacement garage (Amended Plans)  

2. Construction of a single storey side & rear extension 
(Amended Plans)  
3. Internal reconfiguration 

Address: The Lodge Home Lane Sparsholt Winchester Hampshire 
Parish, or Ward if within 
Winchester City: 

 Sparsholt 

Applicants Name: Mr & Mrs Amanda and John McKenna 
Case Officer: Sean Quigley 
Date Valid: 14 January 2020 

Recommendation: Application permitted 
 

 
 
© Crown Copyright and database rights Winchester City Council License 100019531 

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/00084/HOU 
 

 

 
General Comments 
 
This application is being reported to the Planning Committee because of the number of 
objections that have been received contrary to the case officer’s recommendation for 
approval. The parish Council have also objected to the application and requested that be 
considered by the Committee.   
 
Site Description 
 
The existing dwelling, a detached house constructed in the mid-1990s occupies a plot of 
approximately 0.3 acres.  The rear garden faces south-west onto Church Lane, with a 
hedgerow providing privacy around the perimeter of the plot. The site is accessed via a 
drive through a gap in the hedgerow on its south-east corner of the site. This is a private 
road providing access to two neighbouring properties. A large two storey garage in the 
south of the plot was erected in 1996. There are a number of mature trees around the site, 
some of which are subject to Tree Protection Orders.   
 
The site is within the settlement boundary of Sparsholt and is in the Sparsholt 
Conservation Area. The key characteristics of the conservation area are that it is an 
historic hilltop settlement surrounded by rolling fields and woodland with an informal street 
pattern of ancient lanes sunk into the surrounding countryside, with high banks and 
hedges.  
 
 
Proposal 
 
There two main components to the application;  

 the demolition of the existing single story side and rear extension to the existing 

dwelling and its replacement with a larger single-storey extension 

 the demolition of the existing detached triple garage and the construction of a 

replacement detached garage on a different part of the site within the existing 

curtilage  

Relevant Planning History 
 
Permission was previously granted for; 
 

 a two storey extension to the south side of the building and conservatory to rear in 
2005 (05/00355/FUL) 

 

 a detached triple garage with rooms above in 1996  (96/03766/OLD) 
 
Consultations 
 
Historic Environment – the advice was received from the Historic Environment Officer who 
raised no objection to the scheme.  
 

Page 52



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/00084/HOU 
 

 

Landscape/Trees -   the advice of the tree officer was received and no objections were 
raised.  
 
Representations 
 
Sparsholt Parish Council  
 
Objected on the following basis; 
 

 the proposed materials on the extension and the garage do not conform to the 
Village Design Statement and should reflect the pre- application guidance that 
materials should be traditional and reflect the historic architecture and character of 
the area 

 

 the replacement garage has an unacceptable impact on the neighbouring property 
to the north partly because it is on a higher level 

 

 the proposed development does not reflect the character of the part of the village 
where it  is proposed   
 

 the materials proposed for the house extension do not accord with the village 
design statement or the conservation area appraisal 
 

 the 2 car parking spaces just inside the entrance are inappropriate  
 

 impact on service vehicles and visitor parking is unacceptable  
 

 the large tree near the boundary of the site in the vicinity of the proposed garage 
could be severely affected by the development  

 
Comments on the amended plans; 
  

 the development is contrary to DM18, DM23 and DM27 of LPP2, the Village 
Design Statement and the High Quality Places SPD 
 

 the development is contrary to a number of conditions placed on the permission for 
the houses of which the host dwelling is part of and this will be detrimental to road 
safety 
 
 

  the proposed garage has increased in height and this is totally unacceptable in 
relation to the area, the host dwelling and the neighbouring proper 

 
8 letters received objecting to the application for the following reasons: 
 
Submitted Application    
 

 the development is overbearing in relation to the neighbouring dwelling 
 

 the development will have an unacceptably detrimental impact on the privacy of 

Page 53



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/00084/HOU 
 

 

the neighbouring dwelling  
 

 the truncated roof and box-dormer  of the proposed garage is visually detrimental 
 

 the materials for the garage are not in keeping with the host dwelling 
 

 the proposal is not in accordance with the Village Design Statement 
 

 the proposal will destroy the fabric of the village 
 

 the garage is not in keeping with nearby garages 
 

 the 2 car parking spaces on the eastern boundary of the site will have an 
unacceptable impact on the public footpath 
 

 there will be no turning space for delivery vans or cars which will cause disruption 
for other vehicles 
 

 the garage will adversely impact the protected tree’s setting and visual amenity 
 

 the protected tree will be damaged by the development 
 

 garage will be over-dominant in relation to the host dwelling and on the street 
scene generally 
 

 the garage results in overdevelopment and a loss in the perception of space 
contrary to the existing settlement pattern 
 

 there is no precedent for allowing developments which sit astride property 
boundaries  
 

 the design and materials of the proposed extension is out of character with the 
existing house 
 

 the absence of mature boundary planting will expose the garage and extension to 
the detriment of view available from the public footpath  
 

 the proposed balcony/windows on the garage are out of keeping 
 
Amended Application  
 

 overdevelopment of the site 
 

 out of keeping/over-dominant  
 

 contrary to the conservation area and local plan 
 

 the revised design of garage is taller/has more mass than the submitted design  
 

Page 54



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/00084/HOU 
 

 

 lack of adequate parking area within the site 
 

 the development will damage the trees on the site  
 

 vehicles parked at the property will be visually prominent and may block access 
other properties which use the shared drive  

 
Objections raised that are not material to planning: 
 

 a previous application for a garage was refused  
 

 the parking arrangements are contrary to conditions placed on the original 
permission 
 

 the development is contrary to existing covenants 
 

 the demolition of the existing garage is not justified and will detract from the 
character and appearance of the area  
 

 there will be no room for builders vehicles when the development is constructed 
 
1 letter of support received (amended application) 
 

 neighbour welcomes the changes to the eastern elevation of the proposed garage   
 
 

Relevant Planning Policy: 
 
Winchester Local Plan Part 1 – Joint Core Strategy 
 
Policies MTRA3, CP13 (High Quality Design) and CP20 (Heritage and Landscape 
Character)   
 
Winchester District Local Plan Part 2 
 
Policies DM1 (Location of Development), DM15 (Local Distinctiveness), DM16 (Site 
Design Criteria), DM17 (Site Development Principles) , DM18 Access and Parking) and 
DM27 (Development in Conservation Areas)    
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
High Quality Places Supplementary Planning Guidance (2015) 
 
Sparsholt Village Design Statement Supplementary Planning Guidance (2007) 
 
 
Planning Considerations 
 
Principle of development 
 
The site is within the settlement boundary of Sparsholt and is in the Sparsholt 

Page 55



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/00084/HOU 
 

 

Conservation Area. LPP1 Policies MTRA3 (development within settlement boundaries), 
CP13 (high quality design) and CP20 (Heritage) and LPP2 Policies DM1 (location of 
development) and DM27 (development in conservation areas) are the main policies 
against which the proposals will be assessed.  Policy MTRA3 indicates that in 
settlements with defined boundaries, development and redevelopment opportunities will 
be supported and that all development should be appropriate in scale and design to the 
area and conserve each settlement's key historic characteristics and local features. 
Development within conservation areas will be permitted provided it conserves the 
character, appearance and special historic interest of the area.    
 
The proposal is therefore acceptable in principle provided it meets the requirements of 
other local plan policies and unless material considerations indicate otherwise.     
 
Impact on the character and appearance of the area 
 
The existing house, built in the 1990's is a red brick building with a tile roof set within a plot 
of approximately one-third of an acre. The site is surrounded on its frontage with Church 
Lane with a tall mature hedge which restricts views into the site. There are a number of 
mature trees on the site.  

 
Extension - the application proposes the demolition of an existing side and rear extension 
to the house on its southern elevation (approved in 2005) and its replacement with a larger 
single-storey extension of a more contemporary design. The flat-roofed design, which 
incorporates timber cladding, metal roof and wall elements, has significant areas of floor to 
ceiling glazing to connect the main living areas with the garden.  Whilst the proposed 
extension has a bigger footprint than the existing one, it is in proportion to the existing 
house and although contrasting in design, nevertheless preserves its character. The 
extension which it replaces is of limited architectural value and its replacement improves 
the building.  
 
Notwithstanding that views of the proposed extension from public areas are limited, it 
nevertheless responds positively to and does not detract from the character and 
appearance of the conservation area.   
 
Garage demolition - because the site is within the Sparsholt Conservation Area and the 
existing garage is over the size threshold for permitted development, its demolition 
requires planning permission. The existing garage occupies a position at the front of the 
plot, close to the site's boundary with Church Lane where public views of the site are 
gained. The existing garage is large, with an expanse of steep-sloped, dual-pitched roof 
visible over the hedge. Overall, it makes a neutral contribution to conservation area. The 
removal of the existing garage will have a neutral impact on the character and appearance 
of the area where several pedestrian and vehicular routes intersect.   
 
Replacement garage - it is proposed to build a new detached garage to the north of the 
house, between it and the detached house to the north-west. This is a logical position for a 
new garage building in the context of the pattern of existing development. The effect of the 
proposal will be to remove the existing large detached garage from a more visually 
prominent position at the front of the site, to a position where it will be less prominent from 
public views.  Whilst the relocated garage will be visible from the public right of way which 
runs along the eastern boundary of the site, it will be viewed against the backdrop formed 
by, and the in the context of, the existing group of detached houses, reducing its visual 

Page 56



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/00084/HOU 
 

 

prominence. The proposed garage has living accommodation (a study/home office) on the 
first floor, with a dormer window on the south-east facing roof slope, facing away from the 
house to the north. The design of the dormer window has been amended during the 
application process to reduce its size and prominence. The proposed materials (facing 
bricks, slate tiled roof and wooden doors and windows) relate well to the existing house, 
those nearby and the area in general. The net effect of the relocation of the detached 
garage on the character and appearance of the area will be neutral.  
 
Separate parking spaces - in response to concerns with the proposal for 2 parking spaces 
in the south-east corner of the site, this element of the proposal has been withdrawn.    
 
Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act requires the 
planning authority to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 
character or appearance of conservation areas. The Sparsholt Conservation Area is 
characterised by ancient lanes, some sunk into the countryside, with high banks and 
hedges.  The majority of housing is varied 20th Century detached dwellings on large plots, 
often discreetly located behind high banks of trees and hedges.  The proposed single-
storey extension and the relocated garage building do not detract from these features of 
the conservation area.  
 
The Sparsholt Village Design Statement (SVDS 2007) is a material consideration in the 
assessment of the application. The SVDS describes the characteristics of the area and, 
similar to the local plan, requires new development to respect and take the existing 
character and appearance of the area into account. However, while the SVDS requires 
building materials to harmonise with existing buildings, the more recent district-wide High 
Quality Places Supplementary Planning Guidance (2015) acknowledges the potential for 
distinctive extensions to enrich the vitality of the built environment and to improve legibility. 
Accordingly, there will be instances where extensions which contrast with the character of 
the host building will be appropriate, as in this case.       
 
Landscape/Trees 
 
There are a number of trees in the vicinity of the proposed garage which contribute to the 
character of the conservation area.  This includes 2 protected (TPO) trees, one within the 
application site T1 - approximately 5m east of the garage, and T24, approximately 6m 
north of the proposed garage.  The Tree Protection Plan, and Arboricultural Assessment 
and Method Statement submitted with the application indicate that the construction of the 
garage will require one low quality tree and one small clipped hedge which currently 
contributes little to the character of the area, and has limited potential to contribute in the 
future, to be removed. The report concludes that whilst T1 may be affected by the 
installation of the garage, if an appropriate methodology is adopted - a suspended floor 
slab supported by screw piles or similar - this can be achieved without the any long-term 
detriment to the health of the tree and therefore on its contribution to the character of the 
area.  T1 will also need to have its crown raised to 6m above ground level - this will have 
no significant detrimental impact on the health of the tree and, because of its position, 
would have no significant impact on the character of the area.   
 
Whilst the proposed no-dig surfacing to link the existing block paved driveway and the new 
garage will encroach into the outer edge of the root protection area of T24, this can be 
achieved without any long-term detriment to the health of the tree by using custom-
designed no-dig specification surfacing, which will be subject to an appropriate condition.   

Page 57



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/00084/HOU 
 

 

The arboricultural statement also acknowledges the scope for planting new tree planting to 
mitigate the impact of the development. Any permission will have a condition attached 
requiring the submission of a detailed landscape plan, which will include additional tree 
planting, before construction of the garage commences.   
    
Finally, the arboricultural method statement sets out adequate precautionary protective 
measures for existing trees to ensure they are not damaged during the construction of the 
proposed development.   

 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
Whilst the proposed garage building will be directly on the boundary with the adjacent 
house to the north-west and the adjacent plot is at a lower level that the site of the garage, 
its position - backing onto that property’s detached garage - mitigates its potential 
visual/overbearing impact. Finally, the dormer window proposed for the new garage will 
face away from the neighbouring property, towards the host dwelling. In conclusion, the 
proposed development will not have a significant impact on the residential amenities of the 
occupiers of neighbouring properties.   
 
Highways/Parking  
 
Concerns have been raised regarding the adequacy of parking arrangements and 
vehicular movements within the site, particularly in relation to the shared drive and the 
proposed detached garage. However, these arrangements are satisfactory and the parking 
available will be adequate and in accordance with the Council’s requirements. Concerns 
that vehicle movements within the site will impede those outside the site are unfounded.  
 
Equality 
 
Due regard should be given to the Equality Act 2010: Public Sector Equality Duty. Public 
bodies need to consciously think about the three aims of the Equality Duty as part of the 
process of decision-making. The weight given to the Equality Duty, compared to the other 
factors, will depend on how much that function affects discrimination, equality of 
opportunity and good relations and the extent of any disadvantage that needs to be 
addressed. The Local Planning Authority has given due regard to this duty and the 
considerations do not outweigh any matters in the exercise of our duty as statutory 
planning authority for the Council. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Whilst the Council’s ecology officer has raised no objection to the proposed development, 
a survey supplied with the application confirms that a Serotine bat roost has been 
confirmed in the garage. Accordingly, appropriate conditions will be attached to any 
permission in this regard.  
 
Recommendation 
 
APPROVE subject to the following conditions: 
 

01   The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission. 

Page 58



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/00084/HOU 
 

 

 
01   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended). 
 
02   The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the extension 
hereby permitted shall be as specified in Section 5 of the submitted application form. 
 
02   In the interests of the visual amenities of the area 
 
03   The development hereby approved shall be constructed in accordance with the 
following plans: 
 
Proposed Site Plan - P102 C 
Ground Floor Plan - P105 A 
North and East Elevations - P110 B 
South and West Elevations - P111 B  
First Floor Plan - P106 A 
Garage Elevations - P112  B 
Garage Ground, First, Roof Plans - P107 B 
 
03   For the avoidance of doubt, to ensure that the proposed development is carried out in 
accordance with the plans and documents from which the permission relates to comply 
with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
04   The ground floor of the garage hereby permitted shall only be used for the purpose of 
accommodating private motor vehicles and other ancillary domestic storage purposes. The 
first floor shall only be used as a study/home office. The garage shall not, at any time, be 
used for living accommodation (other than for a study/home office on the first floor), 
business, commercial or industrial purposes. 
 
04   In the interests of good planning and to protect the residential amenities of the 
occupiers of nearby dwellings, and the character of the area. 
 
05   No development shall take place until details of soft landscape works have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these 
works shall be carried out as approved within the first planting season following the 
substantial completion of the development or as otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. These details shall include the following, as relevant: 
details of all trees, hedges and other planting to be retained , planting plans, written 
specifications and schedules of plants, noting species, planting sizes and proposed 
numbers/densities where appropriate: implementation programme. All soft 
landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The 
soft landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting season following the 
occupation of the building or the completion of the development whichever is the 
sooner. If within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, any trees, shrubs or 
plants die, are removed or, in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, become 
seriously damaged or defective, others of the same species and size as that 
originally planted shall be planted at the same place, in the next planting season, 
unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 
05   In the interests of the amenities of the locality 

Page 59



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/00084/HOU 
 

 

 
06   All works set out in the Arboricultural Method Statement (J Barrell Tree Consultancy 
10 April 2019) relating both to trees and to construction activities shall be undertaken in 
strict accordance with that information. Protective measures, including fencing and ground 
protection in accordance with this information shall be installed prior to any construction or 
groundwork commencing on the site and will remain until the development is complete. 
 
06   In the interests of the amenities of the locality. 
 
07   Details of the construction of foundations/slab/base for the garage building hereby 
permitted, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority 
prior to the commencement of construction of the garage. 
 
07   In order to protect and preserve the health and longevity of nearby trees. 
 
08. The demolition of the existing garage shall not commence until a Low Impact Class 
License has been obtained from Natural England following completion of bat surveys at 
the beginning of the survey season. The bat reports and Low Impact Class Licence 
application shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The Natural England license details of mitigation relating to sensitive dismantling of the 
building, bat roost provision and sensitive lighting shall be adhered to and implemented in 
full. 
 
08. To ensure to ensure that any protected species are safeguarded in accordance with 
local plan policy and current legislation.  
 
Informatives: 
 
1. This permission is granted for the following reasons: 
 
The development is in accordance with the Policies and Proposals of the Development 
Plan set out below, and other material considerations do not have sufficient weight to 
justify a refusal of the application. In accordance with Section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, planning permission should therefore be granted. 
 
2. The Local Planning Authority has taken account of the following development plan 
policies and proposals:- 
 
LPP1 Policies MTRA3, CP13 (High Quality Design) and CP20 (Heritage and Landscape 
Character)  
 
LPP2 Policies DM1 (Location of Development), DM15 (Local Distinctiveness), DM16 (Site 
Design Criteria), DM17 (Site Development Principles) DM18 Access and Parking) and 
DM27 (Development in Conservation Areas)    
 
High Quality Places Supplementary Planning Guidance (2015) 
 
 
 

Page 60



WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Case No: 20/00084/HOU 
 

 

3. In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF, Winchester City Council (WCC) take a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused on solutions. WCC 
work with applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by; 
-offering a pre-application advice service and, 
-updating applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their 
application and where possible suggesting solutions. 
 
4. During Construction, no materials should be burnt on site. Where allegations of statutory 
nuisance are substantiated by the Environmental Protection Team, an Abatement Notice 
may be served under The Environmental Protection Act 1990. The applicant is reminded 
that the emission of dark smoke through the burning of materials is a direct offence under 
The Clean Air Act 1993 
 
5. All building works including demolition, construction and machinery or plant operation 
should only be carried out between the hours of 0800 and 1800 hrs Monday to Friday and 
0800 and 1300 hrs Saturday and at no time on Sundays or recognised public holidays. 
Where allegations of noise from such works are substantiated by the Environmental 
Protection Team, a Notice limiting the hours of operation under The Control of Pollution 
Act 1974 may be served. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



20/00084/HOU – THE LODGE, HOME LANE,  SPARSHOLT

P
age 63



P
age 64



P
age 65



Proposed Block Plan 

P
age 66



Proposed South and West Elevation  

P
age 67



Proposed North and East Elevations 

P
age 68



Proposed Ground Floor Plans  

P
age 69



Proposed Garage Elevations 

P
age 70



Proposed Garage Floor Plans  

P
age 71



P
age 72



P
age 73



P
age 74



Case No: SDNP/20/03665/FUL  
Proposal Description: New single storey dwelling  
Address: Lion Hill House, Alton Road, West Meon, GU32 1JF 

Parish, or Ward if within 
Winchester City: 

West Meon 

Applicants Name: Mrs Liz Freemantle 
Case Officer: Sarah Tose 
Date Valid: 17 September 2020 

Recommendation: Permitted 
 

 
Link to Planning Documents:  
https://planningpublicaccess.southdowns.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QFRK0TTUIC900  
 
Pre Application Advice: No 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
General comments 
 
This application is reported to the Planning Committee at the request of the Parish 
Council, which is appended to this report. 

Page 75

Agenda Item 11

https://planningpublicaccess.southdowns.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QFRK0TTUIC900
https://planningpublicaccess.southdowns.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QFRK0TTUIC900


 
1 Site Description 

 
Lion Hill House (formerly The Red Lion pub) is a Grade II listed building, 
dating from the late 17th/early 18th centuries, which is located on the west 
side of Alton Road (A32) in the village centre of West Meon. It lies in a 
prominent position, being on a sharp corner of the main A32 Meon Valley 
road, which runs through the centre of the village. 
 
The application site comprises land to the rear of Lion Hill House which was 
previously the car park and garden to the former pub. The land rises to the 
west and predominantly consists of hardstanding. The site is accessed by a 
single track access that runs alongside the north of the building. The access 
faces directly to the west so there are clear views into the site from the 
approach from the east. 
 
There are neighbouring properties to the west of the site (Hartsmeon) and to 
the east/ northeast (Sycamore Cottage, which is also listed, and Benhams 
Cottage). A public footpath lies to the north of the site, to the north side of 
Benhams Cottage, which leads to the churchyard to the northwest. 
 
The site lies within the settlement boundary of West Meon, the Conservation 
Area and the South Downs National Park. 
 
 

2 Proposal 
 
The proposal seeks to construct a two bedroom single storey detached 
dwelling with associated parking and landscaping. 
 

 
3 Relevant Planning History 

 
SDNP/12/01285/LIS - Minor internal modifications including reinstatement of 
missing staircase and walls to ground floor. Reorganisation of 20C addition to 
form kitchen, removal of 20C first floor addition. Conversion of north wing into 
separate 2 bedroom annexe. Reinstatement of garden to front of property, 
landscaping works to rear of property. New dormer window to front elevation. 
STATUS: APP 14th December 2012. 
 
SDNP/14/01925/FUL - Change of use from public house comprising 
managers dwelling and self-contained annexe to 1 no. dwelling with self-
contained annexe with associated landscaping (AFFECTS THE SETTING OF 
A LISTED BUILDING). STATUS: APP 23rd January 2015. 
 
SDNP/15/01975/DCOND - Discharge condition 5 relating to 
SDNP/12/01285/LIS. STATUS: APP 19th November 2015. 
 
SDNP/16/02316/FUL - Erection of 1No. detached dwelling at Land to the Rear 
of Lion Hill House. STATUS: WDN 9th September 2016. 

Page 76



 
SDNP/17/02415/PRE - Proposed new dwelling STATUS: PRE 5th July 2017. 
 
SDNP/17/03750/FUL - Erection of one new dwelling at land to the rear of Lion 
Hill House. STATUS: REF 13th September 2018. 
 
SDNP/18/06472/LIS - Amendments to SDNP/12/01285/LIS and retrospective 
installation of a flue to the annex, 2 roof lights to the rear, changes in 
fenestration and the creation of first floor bathroom and store. STATUS: APP 
18th February 2019. 
 
APPEALS 
SDNP/08/00001/REF - Erection of one new dwelling at land to the rear of Lion 
Hill House. ALLOW 25th April 2019. 

 
 
4 Consultations  

 
Parish Council Consultee  
 The proposed dwelling by reason of its unsympathetic modern design is 
considered to be an inappropriate insensitive form of development which is 
out of keeping with both the scale and design of the adjoining historic 
buildings, and its siting within the West Meon Conservation Area and South 
Downs National Park. 
 
Whilst West Meon Parish Council recognise that the application is for a single 
dwelling and that contemporary design can be appealing, the Parish believe 
the design to be not in keeping with the Conservation Area and the 
surrounding properties and not adhering to the principles of design and 
materials in the West Meon Village Design Statement 2002. 
 
The application is for a dwelling that would not be traditional in design or 
scale, and would affect the setting of the listed buildings around. 
 
Whilst the recent appeal decision on this site is acknowledged, a high quality 
traditionally designed building is required which is sympathetic to its setting in 
the West Meon Conservation Area, the adjacent to listed buildings and South 
Downs National Park. 
 
WMPC would request that this application is referred to the Planning 
Committee as was the previous planning application due to the planning 
history of the site and appeal. 

 
WC - Historic Environment Officer & WC - Urban Design  
No objection to contemporary design, concerns regarding original materials 
which have been addressed. 
 
WC - Ecologist & Biodiversity Officer  
No objection, subject to conditions. 

 

Page 77



 
5 Representations 

 
2 representations have been received from the two closest neighbours to the 
application site, generally supporting the scheme but with conditions as set 
out below: 
 

 Design is architecturally interesting and sensitive to the site. 

 The development will enhance the site hugely. 

 Applicant has maintained the single storey nature of the proposal and 
has moved the flat roofed element of the structure significantly further 
from the party boundary. 

 Existing 3.5m high boundary wall increased to approximately 4.5m.  

 The changes are welcomed and reflect a positive neighbourly approach 
by the applicant and architects. 

 Support the environmentally friendly additions to the proposed building 
i.e. green 'Sedum' roof, PV panels, sensitive choice of materials. 

 Permitted development rights should be removed. 

 Restriction of working hours should be imposed. 

 Submission of a Construction Environment Management Plan. 

 All conditions attached to the appeal decision should be added to any 
permission granted. 

 Particular attention should be given to ensuring that the levels of the 
site and the setting of the new dwelling within those levels are carefully 
considered.  

 The addition of a mezzanine or first floor in the future should be 
prevented. 

 
 

6 Planning Policy Context 
 Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The statutory development 
plan in this area is the South Downs Local Plan 2014-2033 and any relevant 
minerals and waste plans. Other plans considered: 

 

 West Meon Village Design Statement 
  
 The development plan policies and other material considerations considered 
relevant to this application are set out in section 7, below. 
  
 National Park Purposes 
The two statutory purposes of the SDNP designation are: 
 

 To conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural 
heritage,   

 To promote opportunities for the public understanding and enjoyment 
of the special qualities of their areas. 
 

If there is a conflict between these two purposes, conservation takes 

Page 78



precedence. There is also a duty to foster the economic and social well-being 
of the local community in pursuit of these purposes.   
 

 
7 Planning Policy  
 

Relevant Government Planning Policy and Guidance  
Government policy relating to National Parks is set out in English National 
Parks and the Broads: UK Government Vision and Circular 2010 and The 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), updated February 2019. The 
Circular and NPPF confirm that National Parks have the highest status of 
protection, and the NPPF states at paragraph 172 that great weight should be 
given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in national 
parks and that the conservation and enhancement of wildlife and cultural 
heritage are also important considerations and should be given great weight in 
National Parks. 

 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  
The following National Planning Policy Framework documents have been 
considered in the assessment of this application:  
  

 NPPF12 - Achieving well-designed places 

 NPPF15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

 NPPF16 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 
 
Paragraph 2 states that planning applications must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 

 
The development plan policies listed below have been assessed for their 
compliance with the NPPF and are considered to be compliant with the NPPF. 
 
The following policies of the South Downs Local Plan are relevant to this 
application: 
  

 Core Policy SD1 - Sustainable Development 

 Core Policy SD2 - Ecosystems Services 

 Strategic Policy SD4 - Landscape Character 

 Strategic Policy SD5 - Design 

 Strategic Policy SD8 - Dark Night Skies 

 Strategic Policy SD9 - Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

 Strategic Policy SD10 - International Sites 

 Strategic Policy SD12 - Historic Environment 

 Development Management Policy SD15 - Conservation Areas 

 Development Management Policy SD22 - Parking Provision 

 Strategic Policy SD25 - Development Strategy 

 Strategic Policy SD26 - Supply of Homes 

 Strategic Policy SD48 - Climate Change and Sustainable Use of 
Resources 

Page 79



 
 Partnership Management Plan 

The Environment Act 1995 requires National Parks to produce a Management 
Plan setting out strategic management objectives to deliver the National Park 
Purposes and Duty. National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) states that 
Management Plans "contribute to setting the strategic context for 
development" and "are material considerations in making decisions on 
individual planning applications." The South Downs Partnership Management 
Plan as amended for 2020-2025 on 19 December 2019, sets out a Vision, 
Outcomes, Policies and a Delivery Framework for the National Park over the 
next five years. The relevant policies include: 

 
• General Policy 1 
• General Policy 3 
• General Policy 9 

 
8 Planning Assessment 

 
Appeal summary 
The site benefits from an extant planning permission for a single storey 

contemporary dwelling that was allowed on appeal in April 2019 

(SDNP/17/03750/FUL, Appeal Ref: APP/Y9507/W/18/3219010). The 

applicant therefore has until April 2022 to implement the existing permission if 

they wish to. The following extracts have been taken from the appeal 

decision: 

 

'The single storey nature of the proposal and its siting within the available site 

area would allow for it to sit comfortably within the context of its surroundings 

and maintain the legibility of the urban form. The plot is sufficiently large to 

accommodate the proposal, with broadly half of the site occupied by the new 

building, and half given over to either hard or soft landscaped space around 

it.' 

 

'The proposal would be located at the end of a lengthy shared driveway to 

maintain an adequate degree of separation from the public highway and Lion 

Hill House. The dwelling would be set down within the site and would be 

sufficiently set apart from neighbouring buildings, including Hartsmeon and 

the outbuilding associated with Sycamore Cottage, so as not to appear 

cramped or overdeveloped.' 

 

'From the public views towards the site from the A32 and crossroads, the 

proposed dwelling would be set back into the site and would be lower than the 

buildings that surround it. The flat roof, cellular element of the building would 

be present in these views and it would add visual interest without being 

dominating or obtrusive within the streetscene.' 

 

Page 80



'The proposal would also be constructed from natural materials which would 

allow the building to form a recessive element of the streetscene. Whilst it 

would present a different character to the traditional buildings that surround it, 

the contemporary style and materials would avoid a pastiche development 

that would maintain the integrity of the historic built form.' 

 

'In views from the nearby footpath and churchyard, the pitched slate roof 

component of the building would be visible as a mid-ground element within a 

wider roofscape view. This addition within the view would not represent an 

unwelcome or harmful change. Owing to the combined effect of its siting, 

scale and appearance, the proposal would not compete for attention in the 

streetscene or detract from the setting of the listed building, Lion Hill House.' 

 

'The proposal would preserve the character and appearance of West Meon 

Conservation Area.' 

 

Background to revised application 

After the previous application was allowed on appeal, the applicants had an 

opportunity to purchase a portion of land from the neighbouring property 

Sycamore Cottage, which was partially occupied by an existing outbuilding at 

the time of the previous application. This outbuilding has now been 

demolished, so the additional land purchased by the applicant has been 

incorporated into the site which has provided a more usable plot shape. A 

revised design has therefore been submitted which has provided more living 

space at the northern end of the site that is more concealed, and has moved 

the proposed dwelling further away from the neighbouring property 

Hartsmeon whilst allowing a larger outdoor amenity space. 

 

Principle of development 

The site lies within the settlement boundary of West Meon where the principle 

of new development is supported by policy SD25 of the South Downs Local 

Plan. The development would add to the stock of small homes within the 

National Park which is welcomed.   

 

Siting, scale, design and impact on the character and appearance of the 

Conservation Area 

The council's Historic Environment Officer and Urban Designer have 

assessed the proposal and consider that the contemporary design of the 

proposed dwelling is acceptable and would not compete with the adjacent 

listed buildings in terms of scale or design. They raised a few concerns 

regarding the materials as originally submitted, which comprised blackened 

timber cladding for much of the elevations and roof, which was considered to 

look a bit monolithic if used for the whole building. The cladding has now been 

changed to a light/mid brown English wood, with natural slate proposed for 

Page 81



the roof, which would fit well with the PV panels while achieving the desirable 

colour contrast between materials. The amended materials are therefore 

considered acceptable and would ensure that the building fits well within its 

context. Render is also proposed in some of the elevations which is 

considered acceptable as long as it is a high quality render material. Condition 

3 is recommended to ensure that materials are submitted for prior approval.  

 

The proposed dwelling would be set back from the A32, ensuring that the 

listed Lion Hill House remains visually prominent. The proposed building 

would be single storey comprising various forms of differing heights. The 

northern part has a pitched roof form that reflects the former outbuilding of 

Sycamore Cottage (which it replaces) and has a more traditional appearance 

when viewed from the public footpath to the north. The southern part of the 

dwelling contains flat roof forms which respond to the levels within the site 

and are proposed as sedum roofs. It is proposed to set the dwelling into the 

ground by approximately 500mm to minimise the height further and ensure it 

remains subservient to the adjacent listed buildings and is not overly 

prominent when viewed from the A32. Condition 6 is recommended to secure 

details of existing and proposed levels.  

 

The proposed sedum roofs on the flat roof elements of the proposed dwelling 

are welcomed, as this would enhance biodiversity and result in a more 

verdant appearance which would be in keeping with the rural village setting. 

The development is considered to enhance the appearance of the locality, as 

the existing car park would be replaced with a high quality scheme that would 

add visual interest to views from the A32. From the footpath and churchyard 

to the north of the site, views would only be of the proposed dwelling's slate 

roof which would be seen in the context of the existing roofscape. 

 

In summary, the siting, scale and design of the development is not considered 

to result in any harm to the character or appearance of the West Meon 

Conservation Area or the setting of the adjacent listed buildings.  

 

Given the close proximity of the site to neighbouring properties and its historic 

context, it is considered reasonable to remove permitted development rights 

for the new dwelling. Condition 13 is recommended to secure this.  

 

Landscape character of the South Downs National Park 

It is considered that a new dwelling in this location would be in keeping with 

the existing residential character of the area. The design is considered 

acceptable and as such the development is not considered to detract from the 

landscape character and natural beauty of the National Park. Given the 

location of the site in the National Park and Conservation Area it is considered 

reasonable to apply a landscaping condition to ensure that the proposed 

Page 82



planting and boundary treatment is appropriate for its setting. Condition 4 is 

recommended to secure details of landscaping including boundary 

treatments. 

 

Dark Night Skies 

The South Downs National Park is an International Dark Sky Reserve so 

proposals must incorporate methods to minimise light intrusion. The scheme 

includes the provision of roof lights so condition 8 is recommended to ensure 

that details of measures to mitigate the light spillage, such as black out blinds 

or low transmittance glazing, are submitted for prior approval. Details of any 

external lighting (other than low level security lighting on sensors) have also 

been secured by recommended condition 9 to protect the dark night skies of 

the Park and local wildlife.  

 

Highways 

The scheme includes the provision of 5 parking spaces (2 for the proposed 

dwelling and 3 for Lion Hill House and Annexe) which meets the local parking 

requirements. There is space within the site for vehicles to turn in order to 

access / egress in a forward gear, and no alterations are proposed to the 

existing access. No highway related concerns were raised with the previous 

application that was allowed at appeal. The development is therefore not 

considered to have an adverse impact on highway safety. 

 

Ecosystem services 

Policy SD2 of the South Downs Local Plan requires all new development to 

enhance the eco systems within the site. The applicant is proposing the 

following enhancements which are considered to be acceptable and have 

been secured by recommended condition 10: 

- New planting. 

- Sedum roofs. 

- PV panel array. 

- Underground rainwater harvesting storage tank. 

- Air source heat pump. 

- Composting storage bin. 

- Log piles/ wildlife stacks. 

 

Ecology 

The proposed development is situated within 100m of the River Meon SINC, 

however there are other properties and a road separating the development 

from this locally designated site. The majority of the existing site is comprised 

of hardstanding and therefore it is considered unlikely that any protected 

species will be impacted. The council's Ecologist has therefore raised no 

objection to the proposal, subject to conditions regarding biodiversity net gain 

(condition 11) and external lighting (condition 9). 

Page 83



 

Local residential amenity 

Due to the single storey nature of the development, views from the proposed 

dwelling would be screened by the existing and proposed boundary treatment. 

The development is therefore not considered to result in any harmful 

overlooking to neighbouring properties. 

 

The proposed dwelling would be sited approximately 4.5m further from the 

boundary with the neighbouring property Hartsmeon (located to the west of 

the site) than the appeal scheme. Sycamore Cottage and Lion Hill House are 

located further away to the east and southeast. Due to the separation 

distances between buildings and the modest height of the new dwelling, it is 

not considered that the development would result in any overbearing or 

overshadowing impacts to neighbouring properties.  

 

The two closest neighbouring properties are supportive of the proposal, 

subject to measures being put in place to protect their amenities. Conditions 

have therefore been applied to ensure that no mezzanine or first floor is 

provided within the dwelling in the future (condition 14), which could lead to 

overlooking issues, and permitted development rights have been removed 

(condition 13). Conditions relating to working hours (condition 15), the 

prevention of mud on the highway (condition 16) and contractor's parking 

(Condition 17) are recommended to protect the amenities of adjacent 

occupiers during the construction phase. 

 

Drainage 

A package treatment plant is proposed for foul drainage and an underground 

rainwater harvesting storage tank for surface water. Conditions 5 is 

recommended to secure further details of foul and surface water drainage 

prior to the commencement of development. 

 

Sustainable construction 

Policy SD48 of the South Downs Local Plan requires new development to 

demonstrate how it addresses climate change mitigation through the on-site 

use of zero and/or low carbon technologies, sustainable design and 

construction, and low carbon materials. Developments must also demonstrate 

a 19% reduction in carbon dioxide through the energy efficiency of the 

building and a total mains consumption of water of no more than 110 litres per 

person per day. Condition 12 is attached to ensure that a design stage 

sustainability report is submitted for prior approval which demonstrates that 

these requirements are met. 

 

Nitrate neutrality 

All applications for new dwellings and overnight accommodation are required 

Page 84



to demonstrate that they are nitrate neutral, in order to meet the requirements 

of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). 

The proposed dwelling would generate additional nitrates that will need to be 

mitigated. The applicant has agreed to the imposition of a Grampian condition 

(recommended condition 18) to ensure that a mitigation strategy is submitted 

for prior approval before the development is occupied. 

 
 

9 Conclusion 
 
The application is considered acceptable for the reasons outlined above and 
is recommended for approval. 
 
 

10 Reason for Recommendation and Conditions 
 
It is recommended that the application be Approved for the reasons and 
subject to the conditions set out below. 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 

Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 (as amended).  

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the plans listed below under the heading "Plans Referred to in 
Consideration of this Application". 
 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 
3. No development shall be carried out above ground floor slab level until 
a schedule of external materials finishes and samples to be used on the 
development hereby approved has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be carried 
out in full accordance with the approved schedule and samples. 
 

NB: For the timber cladding a surface treatment that would ensure a uniform 

patina is recommended. A high quality render material, i.e. K Rend and 

natural slate should be used.  

 

Reason: To preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the 

conservation area and to enable the Local Planning Authority to properly 

consider the development. 

 
4. No development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft 
landscape works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Page 85



Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. These 
details shall include: 
 

- Proposed finished levels or contours; car parking layouts; other vehicle and 

pedestrian access and circulation areas; 

- Proposed positions, design, materials/species of boundary treatments to be 

retained/erected or planted. 

- Soft landscape works shall include planting plans; written specifications 

(including cultivation and other operations associated with plant and grass 

establishment); schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed 

numbers/densities where appropriate; - implementation programme. 

 

All landscape works, including the provision of boundary treatments, shall be 

carried out in accordance with the approved details. The works shall be 

carried out prior to the occupation of the development or in accordance with a 

programme agreed by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory development and in the interests of amenity 

and landscape character. 

 
5. No development shall take place until detailed proposals for the 
disposal of foul and surface water, notably a workable foul strategy that meets 
building regulations, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall be fully implemented 
before development can begin. 
 

Reason:  To ensure satisfactory surface water and foul drainage. 

 
6. No development shall take place until details, including plans and cross 
sections of the existing and proposed ground levels of the development, the 
boundaries of the site and the height of the ground floor slab and damp proof 
course in relation thereto, have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. These works shall be carried out as approved. 
 

Reason: To protect the character and appearance of the area and the living 

conditions of neighbouring occupiers. 

 
7. The dwelling shall not be occupied until the parking area shown on 
drawing ref: PL03 Proposed Site Plan shall be provided in accordance with 
this approved drawing and provided before the dwelling is first occupied and 
thereafter permanently retained and used only for the purpose of 
accommodating private motor vehicles incidental to the use of the 
dwellinghouse as a residence. 
 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

 

Page 86



 
8. The dwelling hereby permitted shall not be occupied until details of 
measures to reduce light spillage from the proposed roof lights (such as low 
transmittance glass or automatic black out blinds) have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The measures shall be 
installed and operated in accordance with the approved details and retained 
thereafter at all times. 
 

Reason: To minimise light intrusion in the South Downs National Park which 

is a designated International Dark Sky Reserve. 

 
9. No external lighting shall be installed to the building or anywhere within 
the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
This exclusion shall not prohibit the installation internal lighting or of sensor-
controlled security lighting of 1,000 lumens or less, which shall be designed 
and shielded to minimise upwards light spillage. 
 

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in 

the interests of amenity and protect the South Downs International Dark Night 

Skies Reserve. 

 
10. The actions outlined within the eco systems services statement 
(received 18.09.2020) shall be implemented within one month following the 
completion of the development hereby approved or, in the case of soft 
landscaping, during the next available planting season following the 
completion of the development, and thereafter retained.  
 

Reason: To ensure an overall positive impact on the ability of the natural 

environment to contribute goods and services, in accordance with policy SD2 

of the South Downs Local Plan (2014-33). 

 
11. Details of the biodiversity enhancement features shall be submitted to, 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development. This shall include the type and location 
of bat boxes, bird boxes and insect stacks, as well as the proposed native 
planting and green roof. These biodiversity enhancements shall be sited prior 
to the development coming into its intended use and retained thereafter. 
 

Reason: To ensure a net gain in biodiversity in line with policy SD9 and the 

NPPF. 

 
12. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a 
design stage sustainability report shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

For energy this must demonstrate with reference to design stage SAP data: 

 

 a) Predicted CO2 emissions from all proposed new dwellings to be 

Page 87



at least 19% reduced through the energy efficiency of the buildings 

compared to the target emission rate baseline set by building 

regulations  

 b) Predicted CO2 emissions from all proposed new dwellings to be 

at least 20% reduced through the use of on-site low or zero carbon 

energy generation compared to the target emission rate baseline set by 

building regulations.  

 

For water this must demonstrate via a BRE (or equivalent) water calculator 

that the predicted internal mains water consumption is no more than 110 

litres/person/day. 

 

Reason: To ensure an environmentally sustainable development. 

 
13. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification) no building, structure or other 
alteration permitted by Classes A, B, C, D, E, F or G of Part 1 and Class A of 
Part 2 of Schedule 2 of the Order shall be erected or carried out without the 
prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to regulate and control the 

development of land. 

 
14. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or other revoking, re-enacting 
or modifying that order) at no time shall any mezzanine or first floor be 
inserted into the building hereby permitted without the grant of planning 
permission. 
 

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to regulate and control the 

development of land. 

 
15. No vehicles, plant or machinery shall be operated, no process carried 
out and no deliveries taken or dispatched from the site outside the following 
times:- 
 a) 08:00 - 18:00 Mondays to Fridays, 

 b) 08:00 - 13:00 Saturdays 

 c) Not at any time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. 

 

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring occupiers.  

 
16. Details of measures to be taken to prevent mud from vehicles leaving 
the site during construction works being deposited on the public highway shall 
be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and fully 
implemented before development commences. Such measures shall be 

Page 88



retained for the duration of the construction period. No lorry shall leave the 
site unless its wheels have been cleared sufficiently to prevent mud being 
carried onto the highway. 
 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

 
17. Details of provisions to be made for the parking and turning on site of 
operative and construction vehicles during the period of development shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and fully 
implemented before development commences. Such measures shall be 
retained for the construction period. 
 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

 
18. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until:  
 
a) A water efficiency calculation which demonstrates that no more than 

110 litres of water per person per day shall be consumed within the 

development, and this calculation has been submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority  

 

b) A mitigation package addressing the additional nutrient input arising 

from the development has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. Such mitigation package shall address all of the 

additional nutrient load imposed on protected European sites by the 

development and be implemented in full prior to first occupation and shall 

allow the Local Planning Authority to ascertain on the basis of the best 

available scientific evidence that such additional nutrient loading will not have 

an adverse effect on the integrity of the protected European Sites, having 

regard to the conservation objectives for those sites; and 

 

c)  All measures forming part of that mitigation have been secured and 

submitted to the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: To ensure that the proposal does not result in a significant effect on 

a European protected site though an increase in nitrate input in accordance 

with Regulations 63 and 64 of The Conservation of Habitats and Species 

Regulations 2017 and policy SD9 of the South Downs Local Plan (2014-33). 

 
Informatives: 

 
1 In reaching this decision the Local Planning Authority has worked with 

the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the NPPF.  
 
2 Please be respectful to your neighbours and the environment when 

carrying out your development. Ensure that the site is well organised, 

Page 89



clean and tidy and that facilities, stored materials, vehicles and plant 
are located to minimise disruption. Please consider the impact on your 
neighbours by informing them of the works and minimising air, light and 
noise pollution and minimising the impact of deliveries, parking and 
working on public or private roads. Any damage to these areas should 
be remediated as soon as is practically possible. 

 
3 During Construction, no materials should be burnt on site. Where 

allegations of statutory nuisance are substantiated by the 
Environmental Protection Team, an Abatement Notice may be served 
under The Environmental Protection Act 1990. The applicant is 
reminded that the emission of dark smoke through the burning of 
materials is a direct offence under The Clean Air Act 1993. For further 
advice on this please refer the Construction Code of Practice: 
http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/ccs-ltd/what-is-the-ccs/code-of 
considerate-practice  

 
4 The applicant is advised that one or more of the Conditions attached to 

this permission need to be formally discharged by the Local Planning 
Authority before works can commence on site. Details, plans or 
samples required by Conditions should be submitted to the Council at 
least 8 weeks in advance of the start date of works to give adequate 
time for these to be dealt with. If works commence on site before all of 
the pre-commencement Conditions are discharged then this would 
constitute commencement of development without the benefit of 
planning permission and could result in Enforcement action being 
taken by the Council. 

 
5 The proposed development referred to in this planning permission is a 

chargeable development liable to pay Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) under Part 11 of the Planning Act 2008 and the CIL Regulations 
(as amended).  
 
In accordance with CIL Regulation 65, the South Downs National Park 
Authority will issue a Liability Notice in respect of the chargeable 
development referred to in this planning permission as soon as 
practicable after the day on which planning permission first permits 
development.  

 
Further details on the Authority's CIL process can be found on the 
South Downs National Park Authority website: 
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning/communityinfrastructure-levy/  

 

11.  Crime and Disorder Implications  

11.1  It is considered that the proposal does not raise any crime and disorder 
implications. 

12.  Human Rights Implications  

12.1  This planning application has been considered in light of statute and case law 

Page 90

http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/ccs-ltd/what-is-the-ccs/code-of%20considerate-practice
http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/ccs-ltd/what-is-the-ccs/code-of%20considerate-practice
https://www.southdowns.gov.uk/planning/communityinfrastructure-levy/


and any interference with an individual’s human rights is considered to be 
proportionate to the aims sought to be realised.  

 

13.  Equality Act 2010  

13.1  Due regard has been taken of the South Downs National Park Authority’s 
equality duty as contained within the Equality Act 2010.  

 

14.  Proactive Working  

 The materials have been amended during the course of the application as a 
result of Officer's concerns. Amended plans were received and considered 
acceptable. 

 
 
 
 

Page 91



Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application 
 
The application has been assessed and recommendation is made on the basis of the 
following plans and documents submitted: 
 

Plan Type Reference Version Date Received Status 

Plans - LOCATION PLAN PL01  28.08.2020 Approved 

Plans - EXISTING SITE 

PLAN 

PL02  28.08.2020 Approved 

Plans - PROPOSED SITE 

PLAN 

PL03  28.08.2020 Approved 

Plans - GROUND FLOOR 

PLAN 

PL04  28.08.2020 Approved 

Plans - ROOF PLAN PL05 REV A 09.02.2021 Approved 

Plans - EAST ELEVATION PL06 REV A 09.02.2021 Approved 

Plans - SECTION A-A PL07  28.08.2020 Approved 

Plans - SECTION B-B PL08 REV A 09.02.2021 Approved 

Plans - SOUTH ELEVATION PL09 REV A 09.02.2021 Approved 

Plans - WEST ELEVATION PL10 REV A 09.02.2021 Approved 

Plans - WEST ELEVATION 

(WALL) 

PL11   28.08.2020 Approved 

Plans - NORTH 

ELEVATION 

PL12 REV A 09.02.2021 Approved 

Plans - PERSPECTIVE 

VIEWS 

PL20  28.08.2020 Approved 

Plans - ECOSYSTEMS 

SERVICES AND 

LANDSCAPE PLAN 

PL30  18.09.2020 Approved 

Reports - ECOSYSTEM 

SERVICES STATEMENT 

  18.09.2020 Approved 

 
Reasons: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

Page 92



WM Previous Comments 2017 
 
Comments by West Meon Parish Council on Lion Hill House, Planning application 
 
WM Comments 16th October 2020 
 
SDNP/20/03665/FUL Lion Hill House Alton Road West Meon GU32 1JF New single 
story dwelling 
 
1.The proposed dwelling by reason of its unsympathetic modern design is considered to 
be an inappropriate insensitive form of development which is out of keeping with both the 
scale and design of the adjoining historic buildings, and its siting within the West Meon 
Conservation Area and South Downs National Park. 
 
Whilst West Meon Parish Council recognise that the application is for a single dwelling 
and that contemporary design can be appealing, the Parish believe the design to be not in 
keeping with the Conservation Area and the surrounding properties and not adhering to 
the principles of design and materials in the West Meon Village Design Statement 2002. 
 
The application is for a dwelling that would not be traditional in design or scale, and would 
affect the setting of the listed buildings around. 
 
Whilst the recent appeal decision on this site is acknowledged, a high quality traditionally 
designed building is required which is sympathetic to its setting in the West Meon 
Conservation Area, the adjacent to listed buildings and South Downs National Park. 

WMPC would request that this application is referred to the Planning Committee as was 
the previous planning application due to the planning history of the site and appeal 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



SDNP/20/03665/FUL

Lion Hill House, Alton Road, West Meon
GU32 1JF

New single story dwelling

P
age 95



Location Plan

P
age 96



Aerial Photograph

Application 

site

P
age 97



Existing Site Plan

P
age 98



Proposed Site Plan 

P
age 99



Proposed Ground Floor Plan

P
age 100



Proposed Roof Plan

P
age 101



Proposed East & West Elevations

P
age 102



Proposed North & South Elevations

P
age 103



Proposed Sections

North - South

East - West

P
age 104



Proposed West Elevation (showing existing boundary wall)

P
age 105



3D images of proposed dwelling taken from Design & Access Statement 
(NB: the materials have since been amended to light/mid brown cladding and slate roof tiles)

P
age 106



Appeal scheme – proposed site plan

P
age 107



Appeal scheme – proposed east elevation & street scene

P
age 108



View of Lion Hill House and application site from A32

Application site

P
age 109



View of application site from side access

P
age 110



View looking west across application site

P
age 111



View looking west within the application site towards Hartsmeon

P
age 112



View looking northwest across the application site

P
age 113



View looking south within the application site

P
age 114



View looking north across the application site

P
age 115



View looking northeast across the application site towards Sycamore Cottage 

& Benhams Cottage

P
age 116



View looking east across the application site towards A32

P
age 117



View looking south from public footpath 

Application site

P
age 118



Image taken from Design & Access Statement showing proposed dwelling
(NB: the roof material has since been amended to slate)

P
age 119



View from churchyard to the northwest

Application site

P
age 120



Image taken from Design & Access Statement showing proposed dwelling
(NB: the cladding has since been changed to a light/mid brown)

P
age 121



End of presentation

P
age 122



 WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL   

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
Case No: SDNP/20/04221/HOUS 
Proposal Description: Ground floor and first floor rear extension. 

Address: Long Ash  

Pitcot Lane 

Owslebury 

SO21 1LR 

Parish, or Ward if within 
Winchester City: 

Owslebury 

Applicants Name: Mr Churcher 
Case Officer: Ms Charlotte Fleming 
Date Valid: 01 October 2020 

Recommendation: Application Approved 

        

 

 
 
 
General Comments 
 
This application is reported to the Planning Committee at the request of the Parish 
Council which is appended to this report.  
  

Page 123

Agenda Item 12



 
1 Site Description 

Long Ash is a large detached two and a half storey dwelling granted 
permission in 2015. It is located within the South Downs National Park and the 
settlement boundary of Owslebury, however the wider garden and annex is 
outside the settlement boundary.  
 
The property is modern in design with brick and cladding walls, and large 
windows and existing balconies. The site as a whole slopes away from the 
road, with an annexe and garage set halfway down the existing rear garden 
plot off a driveway, beyond which is a lower less formal garden. There is a 
public footpath and access track running along the property boundary to the 
south of the site. 
 
The dwelling is set back from the road (Pitcot Lane) and forms part of a small 
linear development of houses in a variety of styles and plot sizes. 
 

2 Proposal 
 Ground floor and first floor rear extension. 
 
3 Relevant Planning History 

 SDNP/14/02567/FUL - Demolition of bungalow and replacement three storey 
dwelling 
STATUS: REF 24th July 2014. 
 
SDNP/15/00814/LDE - Single storey rear extension (CERTIFICATE OF 
LAWFULNESS) 
STATUS: APP 13th May 2015. 
 
SDNP/15/03445/FUL - Application for the demolition of the existing bungalow 
and erection of a two storey replacement dwelling (RESUBMISSION) 
STATUS: APP 23rd November 2015. 
 
SDNP/18/03893/PRE - Proposed new house. 
STATUS: PRE 23rd November 2018. 
 
SDNP/18/04776/HOUS - Balcony over permitted development single storey 
rear extension 
STATUS: APP 9th November 2018. 
 
SDNP/18/05427/HOUS - Change of use from light industrial B1 connected to 
existing house to domestic annex associated with existing house 
STATUS: APP 29th January 2019. 
 
SDNP/19/03770/HOUS - Retrospective permission for alterations to the 
annexe under the approved plans under application ref: 
SDNP/18/05427/HOUS 
STATUS: APP 19th December 2019 
 
 

Page 124



4 Consultations  
 

Parish Council Consultee  
Owslebury Parish Council opposes this planning application on the following 
grounds: 
 
The Parish Council feels that this planning application is not in keeping with 
the area. This started out as a small bungalow and is now a large family 
home. The Parish Council feels that the dwelling is now too big for the area it 
is situated. It is overbearing and the Parish Council feel that the existing 
dwelling has now been over-extended and has an adverse impact on the 
character and appearance of both the settlement and the countryside. As per 
section 7.91 of the SDNP local plan.  
 
The Parish Council believe that the dwelling is now over the 30% increase 
compared with the original house and the annexe which has been built in the 
garden. The SDNP generally seek modest proposals, the Parish Council feel 
that this is not a modest proposal. 
 
Since 2015 there have been 6 planning applications for this site, the Parish 
Council feel that this shows again the overdevelopment of this site. 
 
The Parish Council would like this planning application to be referred to the 
planning committee, where the Parish Council can speak due to the following 
reasons: 

 Over development of the site. 

 The application will increase the size of the dwelling and annexes to over 
30% compared to the original planning application. 

 It is not in keeping with the area. 
 

5 Representations 
Two neighbours neutral representations have been received, summarised as 
follows: 
- The proposed rear projection of the building extends past the building line 

established under PA SDNP/18/04776/ HOUS, which was consistent with 
the original extended bungalow. The rear building outline will project 
significantly beyond those of the adjacent dwellings, affecting privacy – 
request a condition to prevent further future extension of the house in the 
easterly direction. 

- Concerns over loss of privacy from balcony even with side screening 
- Not aware of any flat roof extensions in Owslebury. 
- Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment, references the wrong 

character area. 
- Floor area has been increase by 23% since 2019, let alone the original 

bungalow to house conversion completed in 2016 – request limit to 
prevent future enlargement. 

 
6 Planning Policy Context 

 Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The statutory development 

Page 125



plan in this area is the South Downs Local Plan 2014-2033 and any relevant 
minerals and waste plans.  
  
 The relevant policies to this application are set out in section 7, below. 
 
 National Park Purposes 
The two statutory purposes of the SDNP designation are: 
 

 To conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural 
heritage,   

 To promote opportunities for the public understanding and enjoyment 
of the special qualities of their areas. 
 

If there is a conflict between these two purposes, conservation takes 
precedence. There is also a duty to foster the economic and social well being 
of the local community in pursuit of these purposes.   
 

7 Planning Policy  
Relevant Government Planning Policy and Guidance  
Government policy relating to National Parks is set out in English National 
Parks and the Broads: UK Government Vision and Circular 2010 and The 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) which was issued on 24 July 
2018. The Circular and NPPF confirm that National Parks have the highest 
status of protection, and the NPPF states at paragraph 172 that great weight 
should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in 
national parks and that the conservation and enhancement of wildlife and 
cultural heritage are also important considerations and should be given great 
weight in National Parks. 

 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  
The following National Planning Policy Framework documents have been 
considered in the assessment of this application:  

 NPPF12 - Achieving well-designed places 

 NPPF15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
 

Paragraph 2 states that planning applications must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 
 
The development plan policies listed below have been assessed for their 
compliance with the NPPF and are considered to be complaint with the NPPF. 
 
The following policies of the South Downs National Park Local Plan - are 
relevant to this application: 
 

 Core Policy SD1 - Sustainable Development 

 Core Policy SD2 - Ecosystems Services 

 Strategic Policy SD4 - Landscape Character 

 Strategic Policy SD5 - Design 

Page 126



 Strategic Policy SD6 - Safeguarding Views 

 Strategic Policy SD7 - Relative Tranquillity 

 Strategic Policy SD8 - Dark Night Skies 

 Strategic Policy SD9 - Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

 Strategic Policy SD20 - Walking, Cycling and Equestrian Routes 

 Strategic Policy SD25 - Development Strategy 

 Strategic Policy SD27 – Mix of Homes 

 Development Management Policy SD31 - Extensions to existing 
dwellings, and provision of annexes and outbuildings 

 
Partnership Management Plan 
The South Downs Partnership Management Plan (SDPMP) was adopted on 3 
December 2013. It sets out a Vision and long term Outcomes for the National 
Park, as well as 5 year Policies and a continually updated Delivery 
Framework. The SDPMP is a material consideration in planning applications 
and has some weight pending adoption of the SDNP Local Plan.  
 
The following Policies and Outcomes are of particular relevance to this case: 
 

 General Policy 1 

 General Policy 3 

 General Policy 50 

 

8 Planning Assessment 
Principle of development 
Policy SD25 of the South Downs Local Plan (SDLP) sets out situations where 
development can be supported within settlement boundaries, provided that 
development: Is of a scale and nature appropriate to the character and 
function of the settlement in its landscape context, it makes best use of 
suitable and available previously developed land in the settlement; and the 
development makes efficient and appropriate use of land. 
 
Policy SD31 of the SDLP covers extensions to existing dwellings, and 
provision of annexes and outbuildings. The policy allows an applicant to 
expand or build outbuildings of up to approximately 30% of the main 
dwelling's original floor area.  
 
The original floor area is based on the dwelling as of December 2002 - this 
excludes detached outbuildings and detached garages. In 2002 the property 
was a 85sqm 1 bed bungalow which was lawfully extended 
(SDNP/15/00814/LDE) to a 130sqm 3 bed bungalow in 2015.  The three bed 
bungalow was replaced by a large detached (338sqm) three storey 5 bed 
house and quadruple garage (SDNP/15/03445/FUL), along with the 
conversion of a former outbuilding to an annexe (SDNP/18/05427/HOUS). 
The principle of these applications were approved prior to the adoption of the 
SDLP (July 2019). Since then a retrospective amendment to enlarge the 
annexe (SDNP/19/03770/HOUS) has been approved under current SDNP 
planning policy. 
 

Page 127



Paragraph 7.91 of the SDLP states that the purpose of policy SD31 'is to 
avoid the over-extension of existing dwellings and the adverse impact that this 
has on the character and appearance of both settlements and the 
countryside.' The policy also seeks to protect the limited supply of small and 
medium-sized homes in the National Park. 
 
As a result of the 2015 replacement dwelling application, the property now 
reads as a large detached house, so the previous annexe development did 
not result in the loss of a small or medium sized home. The house alone, as 
approved in 2015, had a floor area of 338sqm, with the house extensions built 
and the current proposal the total house floor area would be 443sqm. 
However, in this particular case, given the size of the host dwelling the 
proposal is not considered to be at conflict with the underlying purposes of 
policy SD31, which are to protect the supply of smaller homes and to protect 
the landscape character of the National Park.  
 
Design, scale and impact on the character of the area 
Policy SD5 sets out that new development is acceptable provided that it is 
appropriate in scale and design and does not have an adverse impact on the 
character of the area or on surrounding uses and properties. Alterations to the 
rear elevation are not considered to appear out of scale with the existing 
property, the materials complement those of the existing house and therefore 
it is not considered that the proposal would have a significant impact on the 
character of the existing large property. The works would be seen against the 
size and bulk of the existing dwelling and would not detract from the special 
qualities of the landscape.  
 
The proposal extends out and replaces a previously approved balcony using 
matching materials to the house and reusing the existing 2m high side 
screening. The balcony railings to the front edge appear 1m high and the 
same as previously approved. The criteria of policy SD5 are met as the 
extension is in keeping with the existing character of the property and has no 
adverse impact on the character of the area, subject to conditions. 
 
The site is in between residential and an open arable landscape which must 
wherever possible be protected to conserve its distinctive character. The 
proposal has no greater impact than the existing property and extension on 
the amenity value, tranquillity and views from non-motorised travel routes of 
the Park (Policy SD20). 
 
In view of the existing large modern style dwelling, balcony and outbuildings 
on the site, there is no objection in principle to the proposed extensions and 
the primary considerations relating to its impact on the character of the 
existing dwelling and impact on the landscape of the South Downs National 
Park. 
 
Impact on Neighbours 
There are detached residential properties to the north and south of Long Ash, 
with open countryside to the rear. To the north is Downlands, a chalet style 
dwelling, Pitcot House is to the south. Both properties are smaller than Long 

Page 128



Ash and occupy more modest plots which are not as deep as the application 
site. Long Ash is set back in its site with its rear elevation (including the 
existing balcony), sited beyond that of both of its immediate neighbours. 
Therefore, with no new side windows and with the moving of the 2m high 
privacy side panels from the existing balcony onto the new balcony and 
conditioned as such, any views from the balcony are funnelled to the rear 
without overlooking of Downlands and Pitcot House, except for possible 
restricted views to the lower end of their rear gardens. It is not considered that 
the existing balcony or its extension, as proposed, would result in an 
unacceptable level of overlooking or have a detrimental impact on the 
residential amenities of Downlands or Pitcot House or other properties in the 
area. 
 
Other matters 
Dark Night Sky - the site is on the edge of the defined settlement of 
Owslebury, and within an International Dark Sky Reserve (Policy SD8). 
Although within the defined 'transition zone' of the reserve, the windows from 
the previously approved scheme have changed significantly at ground floor 
and are now larger and looking out over the countryside. A condition 
regarding mitigation measures to minimise light spillage in the dark sky 
reserve is recommended.  
 
Ecology and Biodiversity - Although the extensions are on a modern dwelling, 
there are known protected species on the wider site which receive strict legal 
protection under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended). 
Proposed environmental and biodiversity enhancements to the site include 
recycling rainwater, landscaping the garden and installation of bird boxes, all 
of which are supported in line with Policies SD2 and SD9. 
 

9 Conclusion 
The application is therefore considered to be acceptable and is recommended 
for approval. 
 

10 Reason for Recommendation and Conditions 
It is recommended that the application be Approved for the reasons and 
subject to the conditions set out below. 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended).  
 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the plans listed below under the heading "Plans Referred to in 
Consideration of this Application". 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

Page 129



 
 
3. All external materials used in the construction of the development 
hereby approved shall match the type, texture, composition, colour, size and 
profile of those used on the existing building and shall be retained 
permanently as such, unless prior written consent is obtained from the Local 
Planning Authority to any variation. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the appearance of the building and the character of the 
area.  
 
 
4. The balcony screen shall be fitted on both sides of the balcony in 
accordance with the approved plans. The balcony screen shall be retained 
thereafter. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the neighbouring property and to accord 
with the terms of the application. 
 
 
5. The extensions conversion hereby permitted shall not be occupied until 
details (including timings of operation) of automatic black out blinds, or 
specifications for low transmittance/tinted glass which reduce light pollution to 
the windows on the rear elevation are submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The black out blinds/glazing shall be installed 
and operated in accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter 
at all times. 
 
Reason: To minimise light intrusion in the South Downs National Park which is 
a designated International Dark Sky Reserve. 
 
 
6. Details of any external lighting of the site shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to its installation.  
This information shall include a layout plan with beam orientation and a 
schedule of equipment in the design (luminaire type, mounting height, aiming 
angles and luminaire profiles) and hours of operation. The lighting shall be 
installed, maintained and operated in accordance with the approved details 
unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to the variation. 
 
Reason: To protect the landscape character of the South Downs National 
Park from light pollution and to minimise the impact on surrounding habitats. 
 
 
7. The actions outlined within the eco systems services statement 
(received 30/09/2020) shall be implemented within one month following the 
completion of the development hereby approved or, in the case of soft 
landscaping, during the next available planting season following the 
completion of the development, and thereafter retained.  
 

Page 130



Reason: To ensure an overall positive impact on the ability of the natural 
environment to contribute goods and services, in accordance with policy SD2 
of the South Downs Local Plan. 
 

11 Informative 

1.  Crime and Disorder Implications  
It is considered that the proposal does not raise any crime and disorder 
implications.  

2.  Human Rights Implications 
This planning application has been considered in light of statute and case law 
and any interference with an individual’s human rights is considered to be 
proportionate to the aims sought to be realised.  

3. Equality Act 2010  
Due regard has been taken of the South Downs National Park Authority’s 
equality duty as contained within the Equality Act 2010. 

4. In reaching this decision the local planning authority has worked with the 
applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the NPPF. 

5. Bats and their roosts receive strict legal protection under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2010 (as amended). All work must stop immediately if 
bats, or evidence of bat presence (e.g. droppings, bat carcasses or insect 
remains), are encountered at any point during this development. Should this 
occur, further advice should be sought from Natural England and/or a 
professional ecologist. 

6. Your attention is drawn to the provisions of the Countryside and Rights of Way 
Act 2000 and Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and in 
particular to Sections 1 and 9.  

These make it an offence to: 

- kill or injure any wild bird, 
- damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird (when the nest is being built or 
is in use), 
- damage or destroy any place which certain wild animals use for shelter 
(including all bats and certain moths), 
- disturb certain wild animals occupying a place for shelter (again, all bats 
and certain moths). 
 
The onus is therefore on you to ascertain whether such birds, animals or 
insects may be nesting or using the tree(s), the subject of this consent, and 
to ensure you do not contravene the legislation. This may, for example, 
require delaying works until after the nesting season for birds. The nesting 
season for birds can be considered to be March to September. You are 
advised to contact Natural England for further information (tel: 0845 601 
4523). 

 

Page 131



 

Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application 

The application has been assessed and recommendation is made on the basis of the 
following plans and documents submitted: 
 

Plan Type Reference 
Date 

Received 
Status 

Plans - AMENDED STAGE 1 

- SURVEY, STAGE 2 - 

DESIGN 

1721/01_200_C 10.11.2020 Approved 

Plans - PLANS & 

ELEVATIONS 
1721/01_200_B 30.09.2020 Superseded 

 
Reasons: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning 
 
 
 
  

Page 132



Parish request to be heard at committee 

 

Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank



Long Ash,

Pitcot Lane, Owslebury, SO21 1LR

Ground floor and first floor rear extension.

Planning application number:   SDNP/20/04221/HOUS

P
age 135



Application Site

P
age 136



Aerial Photography

Long Ash

P
age 137



Site Plan

P
age 138



Rear of property

P
age 139



Views up to main house from annex

P
age 140



Views towards neighbours

South 

(Pitcot House)
North 

(Downlands)

P
age 141



View into/across site from Pitcot Lane

P
age 142



Views from public footpath

P
age 143



Floor Plans

P
age 144



Side Elevations

NorthSouth

P
age 145



Rear (East) Elevation

P
age 146



P
age 147



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  
 

PDC1177 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

REPORT TITLE: CONFIRMATION OF TPO 2288 - COMBE FOLLY, CLIFF WAY , 
WINCHESTER. 
 
25 FEBRUARY 2021 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: Councillor Jackie Porter, Cabinet Member for 
Built Environment and Wellbeing 

Contact Officer: John Bartlett   Tel No: 01962 848360 Email 
jbartlett@winchester.gov.uk 

WARD(S):  BADGER FARM & OLIVER’S BATTERY 
 
 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

To consider confirmation of Tree Preservation Order 2288 to which eleven letters of 
objection have been received. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That having taken into consideration the representations received, Tree Preservation 
Order 2288 be confirmed. 

 

Page 149

Agenda Item 13



  PDC1177 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME  

1.1 Tackling the Climate Emergency and Creating a Greener District 

Mature trees such as this one, play a key role in helping to tackle the climate 
emergency and create a greener district.  They directly remove carbon dioxide 
from the atmosphere and convert this to stored carbon.  In addition they are 
important for biodiversity in both their own right and as a habitat for other 
species. Therefore, the preservation of this tree will contribute towards the 
Council’s objective to reduce the effects of global warming and carbon 
emissions. 

 
The climate crisis remains a significant, long term challenge to all of us in the 
coming years and decades, and there is a growing ecological crisis too. 
Winchester City Council has committed to tackle these crises and hand our 
district to our children and grandchildren in a better state than it is now. 
 

1.2 Living Well 

1.3 The Biodiversity Action Plan supports the priority of "Living Well" by helping to 
enhance the street view and open spaces by having a high amenity and 
aesthetic value, thereby supporting good mental and physical health for 
residents of all ages.    

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

2.1 None 

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  

3.1 This report is in line with the council’s legal procedures in relation to making 
and confirming TPO’s. 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS  

4.1 None  

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS  

5.1 None  

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 On serving of the Tree Preservation Order (TPO), the landowner and 
immediate neighbours were notified and allowed 28 days to object. 

6.2 Eleven letters of objection were received to the TPO. 
 
 

Page 150



  PDC1177 
 

 

 

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 Mature trees such as this one, play a key role in helping to tackle the climate 
emergency and create a greener district.  They directly remove carbon dioxide 
from the atmosphere and convert this to stored carbon.  In addition they are 
important for biodiversity in both their own right and as a habitat for other 
species.   
 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT  

8.1 None 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

9.1 None 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT  

10.1 None 

 

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Property N/A N/A 

Community Support N/A N/A 

Timescales N/A N/A 

Project capacity N/A N/A 

Financial / VfM N/A N/A 

Legal – If this TPO is not 
confirmed with the 
required time frame, the 
original order will no 
longer be valid 

Bring the confirmation of 
the order to Committee 
within the necessary time 
frame, 

N/A 

Innovation N/A N/A 

Reputation N/A N/A 

Other N/A N/A 

 
 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

11.1 This matter comes to Planning Committee because eleven objections to the 
making of TPO 2288 have been received and have not been withdrawn. 
 

11.2 TPO 2288 was made on 18 November 2020 (and served on 19 November 
2020), because  the council received information from a member of the public 
that the two Western Red Cedar trees within G1 which are located in the rear  
garden of Combe Folly, Cliff Way Compton Down were under threat from 
development. If TPO 2288 is not confirmed, the TPO will expire on 17 May 
2021.  
 

Page 151



  PDC1177 
 

 

 

11.3 The Western Red Cedars (G1) have good public visibility from a number of 
points on the highway in Cliff Way and can also be seen from Hurdle Way 
giving high visual public amenity value.  

11.4 The protection of the trees by a Tree Preservation Order is in accordance with 
Government guidance which states that “orders should be used to protect 
selected trees if their removal would have a significant negative impact on the 
local environment and its enjoyment by the public.” The potential removal of 
these two Western Red Cedar trees would have a significant negative impact 
on the local environment and its enjoyment by the public.  

11.5 There are no arboricultural reasons nor justification provided for the felling of 
these two trees at this property.  There is no history of tree failure and no 
reports of structural damage being caused to the dwelling or neighbouring 
properties. 

12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

12.1 The Council received eleven letters of objection to the making of TPO 2288. 
 

13 SUMMARY OF OBJECTIONS 
 

13.1  The two Western Red Cedars are non-native, so should not be protected. 

13.2  These trees do not contribute to the visual amenity and arboreal character of 
 the local area as they are not noticed from the road and there is low footfall. 

13.3     These trees are too large for the locality and blocking out natural light.  

14  ARBORICULTURAL OFFICERS RESPONSE   
 
14.1  Government guidance allows local councils to place Tree Preservation 

 Orders on native or non-native tree species as long as the criteria laid down 
 for their protection is in accordance with the guidance provided by the 
 Secretary of State. 
 

14.2 In addition, non-native trees are important in the local landscape as they add 
to the diversity of species in the local area. Non-native trees are also 
becoming increasingly important for building up a resilience in the general tree 
population against pests and diseases which affect a number of native trees. 
This helps to retain a tree-lined landscape when native trees are lost within 
the tree population - as a result of these pests and diseases when they occur.  
 
A Tree Evaluation Method for Tree Preservation Orders (Tempo) was under 
taken and the Western Red Cedars (G1) scored a total of 16 points.  This 
score meets the threshold of 16, meaning they definitely warrant a TPO. The 
trees have good visibility from a number of viewpoints on the public highway 
in Cliff Way and can also be seen from Hurdle Way, resulting in the trees 
providing high visual public amenity.  These two Western Red Cedars make a 
significant contribution to the visual amenity and arboreal character of the 

Page 152



  PDC1177 
 

 

 

local area being prominent trees in the local landscape. They have good 
visibility from a number of viewpoints on the public highway in Cliff Way and 
can also be seen from Hurdle Way – giving the trees high visual public 
amenity. 
 

14.3 With regard to the objectors’ comments about footfall, there is no mention in 
the guidance about the number of people who must walk past a tree to 
calculate its amenity value.  It is simply whether the tree is sufficiently visible 
in the public realm.  Moreover, when on site carrying out the site visit which 
lasted less than an hour, 6 people walked past the trees.   
 

14.4 On page 3, paragraph 5.1 of the arboricultural report provided, it states that
 “The two trees are, overall, in good condition with no current indications of 
defects or dysfunction”. In the appraisal it is also estimated that these trees 
could survive for another 100 years or so and could reach a height of 30 
metres. The good condition, life expectancy and future growth potential of 
these trees increases their suitability for a TPO and enhances their value in 
the landscape. 
 

14.5 Tree works to manage these trees can still be applied for to the council. 
 Applications for tree work will then be assessed on individual merit.  
 Confirmation of this TPO does not prevent an application for work. 

 
14.6    These trees will inevitably cause some shading to the garden due to being    

 located to the south and also evergreen. However, they are sufficiently far
 enough from the property to not cause significant issues. In addition, the 
 garden appears to be large enough to accommodate trees of this size. 
     

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Planning Practice Guidance – Tree Preservation Orders and trees in conservation 
areas. 

Arboricultural Report  

Tree Evaluation Method for Preservation Orders- (TEMPO)   

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 – Map  

 

 

 

 

Page 153



  PDC1177 
 

 

 

Appendix 1 – Map  

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 154



Confirmation of TPO 2288 

Combe Folly, Cliff Way

Winchester

P
age 155



HISTORY

At the time that TPO 2288 was served, the 

Council received 11 letters of objection.

The Council received information that the 

trees were under threat of removal.

Following a TEMPO assessment the tree was 

deemed worthy of protection and  TPO (2288)  

was made on 19 November, 2020.

Seeking confirmation of TPO 2288 today.

P
age 156



SUMMARY OF OBJECTIONS

The two Western Red Cedars are non-native, so 

should not be protected.

These trees do not contribute to the visual amenity 

and arboreal character of the local area as they are 

not noticed from the road and there is low footfall.

These trees are too large for the locality and blocking 

out natural light.

P
age 157



ARBORICULTURAL OFFICER RESPONSE

Government guidance allows for non-native 
trees to be protected.

Trees met scoring criteria using tree 
evaluation method (TEMPO). Can be seen 
from number of viewpoints.

Trees appear to be far enough away from the 
property to not cause significant issues.

P
age 158



P
age 159



Public view from Cliff Way, 

near Littlecroft

P
age 160



Rear garden of Combe Folly, 

side of property

P
age 161



Public view of subject trees from roadside in Cliff 

Way

P
age 162



View of subject trees from rear garden of Combe Folly, Cliff 

Way

P
age 163



Public view of subject trees from 

Cliff Way, outside Highdown

P
age 164



Western Red Cedars

Public view from outside 

Compton Down, Hurdle Way

P
age 165



GOVERNMENT GUIDELINES

No arboricultural or technical reasons have been 

provided for the felling of these trees, and there 

are no major defects which have been reported 

or noted.

The Secretary of State’s view is that the higher 

the amenity value of the tree or woodland and 

the greater any negative impact of proposed 

works would have on amenity, the stronger the 

reasons needed before consent is granted. 

P
age 166



RECOMMENDATION

To confirm TPO 2288. 

P
age 167



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  
 

PDC1179 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
 

REPORT TITLE: PLANNING APPEALS 
 
25 FEBRUARY 2021 

Report of Cabinet Member for Built Environment and Wellbeing – Councillor Jackie 
Porter 

Contact Officer:  Julie Pinnock    Tel No: 01962 848 439 

Email jpinnock@winchester.gov.uk  

WARD(S):  ALL (EXCLUDING SOUTH DOWNS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY) 
 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

This report provides a summary of appeal decisions received during October – 
December 2020  

Copies of each appeal decision are available on the Council’s website. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the report be noted. 

 

 

Page 169

Agenda Item 14



   
 
 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL STRATEGY OUTCOME  

1.1 Analysis of appeal decisions ensure consistency in decision making helping 
the City Council to protect the Environment. 

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

2.1 None 

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  

3.1 None 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 None 

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS  

5.1 None  

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 Not applicable – report for information 

 
7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 None 

 
8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

8.1 None 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 None Required 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk (Detail in this column 
specific risks, under each 
of these headings) 

Mitigation Opportunities 

Property N/A  
 

 

Community Support N/A   

Timescales  N/A   

Project capacity   N/A   

Page 170



   
 
 

 

Financial / VfM   N/A   

Legal    N/A   

Innovation   N/A   

Reputation   N/A   

Other  N/A   

 
 
 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

11.1 This report provides a summary of appeal decision in relation to planning 
cases received during  October – December 2020 

 Cases in total 

6 Appeal allowed  54% 

4 Appeal dismissed 37% 

1 Appeal Part allowed/Part Dismissed  9% 

Of these  

1 Appeal allowed cost refused 

4 Appeal allowed costs allowed 

 
12 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

12.1 None 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- Relevant planning applications files. 

Previous Committee Reports:-    PDC 1170 

Other Background Documents:- 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 – Summary of decisions (Planning Cases) October – December 2020 

  

Page 171



   
 
 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 
PLANNING APPEALS – SUMMARY OF DECISIONS (DC CASES) 

 
REPORT FROM HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
 
A summary of appeal decisions received during the period October to December 
2020 
 

 

Item No: 01    

Date of Inspector’s 
Decision: 

8th December 
2020 

Inspector’s 
Decision: 

Appeal Allowed 

Appeal Procedure 
(see code below): 

I Costs: No Application for Costs 

W – Written representation;  I – Informal hearing;  
P – Public Inquiry; H – Householder 
    

Case No: 18/01441/FUL 

Case Officer: Liz Marsden 

Original Decision Type: Delegated Decision 

Was Decision Overturned at 
Committee? 

No 

 

Proposal: use of land for the stationing of caravans for residential purposes 

Location: Land Adjacent To Strawberry Barn Southwick Road North Boarhunt 
Hampshire  

 
 

 

Item No: 02    

Date of Inspector’s 
Decision: 

3rd December 
2020 

Inspector’s 
Decision: 

Appeal Part Allowed/Part 
Dismissed 

Appeal Procedure 
(see code below): 

W Costs: No Application for Cost 

W – Written representation;  I – Informal hearing;  
P – Public Inquiry; H – Householder 
    

Case No: 19/00242/FUL 

Case Officer: Liz Marsden 

Original Decision Type: Delegated Decision 

Was Decision Overturned at 
Committee? 

No 

 

Proposal: Change of use of redundant agricultural buildings to workshop for 
the production of wood products.  
Change of use of agricultural land to extend existing timber yard for 
timber storage. 

Page 172



   
 
 

 

Repositioning and design of service road to serve the retail outlet 
granted by permission 11/00238/FUL 
Installation of yard lighting.  
(retrospective) 

Location: High Ridge Farm Hospital Road Shirrell Heath Southampton 
Hampshire SO32 2JR 

 
 

 

Item No: 03    

Date of Inspector’s 
Decision: 

9th December 
2020 

Inspector’s 
Decision: 

Appeal Allowed  

Appeal Procedure 
(see code below): 

W Costs: Cost Refused 

W – Written representation;  I – Informal hearing;  
P – Public Inquiry; H – Householder 
    

Case No: 19/02107/FUL 

Case Officer: Rose Lister 

Original Decision Type: Delegated Decision 

Was Decision Overturned at 
Committee? 

No 

 

Proposal: Construction of a replacement dwelling 

Location: The Tree Nursery, The Barn North Of Sandy Lane  Sandy Lane 
Shedfield SO32 2HQ   

 
 

 

Item No: 04    

Date of Inspector’s 
Decision: 

26th October 
2020 

Inspector’s 
Decision: 

Appeal Dismissed 

Appeal Procedure 
(see code below): 

W Costs: Appellants Costs Dismissed 

W – Written representation;  I – Informal hearing;  
P – Public Inquiry; H – Householder 
    

Case No: 19/02468/FUL 

Case Officer: Liz Marsden 

Original Decision Type: Committee Decision 

Was Decision Overturned at 
Committee? 

Yes 

 

Proposal: Use of land as residential garden. 

Location: Land To Rear Of 5 Hillside Kitnocks Hill Curdridge Hampshire  

 
 

 

Page 173



   
 
 

 

Item No: 05    

Date of Inspector’s 
Decision: 

22nd October 
2020 

Inspector’s 
Decision: 

Appeal Allowed 

Appeal Procedure 
(see code below): 

H Costs: No Application for Costs 

W – Written representation;  I – Informal hearing;  
P – Public Inquiry; H – Householder 
    

Case No: 19/01755/HOU 

Case Officer: Curtis Badley 

Original Decision Type: Delegated Decision 

Was Decision Overturned at 
Committee? 

No 

 

Proposal: Extensions and alterations including loft conversion with front and 
rear dormers, single storey rear extension, single storey side 
extension and porch 

Location: Russets  Bere Farm Lane North Boarhunt PO17 6JJ   

 
 

 

Item No:06    

Date of Inspector’s 
Decision: 

30th October 
2020 

Inspector’s 
Decision: 

Appeal Dismissed 

Appeal Procedure 
(see code below): 

W Costs: No Application for Costs 

W – Written representation;  I – Informal hearing;  
P – Public Inquiry; H – Householder 
    

Case No: 20/00185/FUL 

Case Officer: Rose Lister 

Original Decision Type: Delegated Decision 

Was Decision Overturned at 
Committee? 

No 

 

Proposal: Construction of two houses following demolition of equestrian 
business. Removal of Equestrian tie. 

Location: Home Farm  Reading Room Lane Curdridge SO32 2HE   

 
 

 

Item No: 07    

Date of Inspector’s 
Decision: 

21st October 
2020 

Inspector’s 
Decision: 

Appeal Dismissed 

Appeal Procedure 
(see code below): 

W Costs: No Application for Costs 

W – Written representation;  I – Informal hearing;  

Page 174



   
 
 

 

P – Public Inquiry; H – Householder 
    

Case No: 20/00449/FUL 

Case Officer: Rose Lister 

Original Decision Type: Delegated Decision 

Was Decision Overturned at 
Committee? 

No 

 

Proposal: Conversion of the existing B1(a) office building to 2x C3 
dwellinghouses and associated hard and soft landscaping. 

Location: Land Adjacent To Wassalls Hall Bishops Wood Road Mislingford 
Hampshire   

 
 

 

Item No: 08    

Date of Inspector’s 
Decision: 

16th 
November 
2020 

Inspector’s 
Decision: 

Appeal Dismissed 

Appeal Procedure 
(see code below): 

W Costs: No Application for Costs 

W – Written representation;  I – Informal hearing;  
P – Public Inquiry; H – Householder 
    

Case No: 19/02506/LIS 

Case Officer: Catherine Watson 

Original Decision Type: Delegated Decision 

Was Decision Overturned at 
Committee? 

No 

 

Proposal: Removal of window and formation of new door opening 

Location: 2 Upper Silkstead Cottages  Silkstead Lane Hursley SO21 2LG   

 
 

 

Item No: 09    

Date of Inspector’s 
Decision: 

23rd October 
2020 

Inspector’s 
Decision: 

Appeal Allowed 

Appeal Procedure 
(see code below): 

W Costs: Appellants Costs Allowed 

W – Written representation;  I – Informal hearing;  
P – Public Inquiry; H – Householder 
    

Case No: 20/00855/FUL 

Case Officer: Rose Lister 

Original Decision Type: Committee Decision 

Was Decision Overturned at 
Committee? 

Yes 

Page 175



   
 
 

 

 

Proposal: Variation of condition 1 of application reference No. 19/01049/HOU 
to allow building to be used solely for purposes ancillary to the 
occupation of the property known as Brown Eaves. The building 
shall not be occupied as an independent unit of residential 
accommodation. 

Location: Brown Eaves  170 Main Road Colden Common SO21 1TJ   

 
 

 

Item No:10    

Date of Inspector’s 
Decision: 

21st 
December 
2020 

Inspector’s 
Decision: 

Appeal Allowed  

Appeal Procedure 
(see code below): 

W Costs: Cost Refused 

W – Written representation;  I – Informal hearing;  
P – Public Inquiry; H – Householder 
    

Case No: 20/01202/PNRCOU 

Case Officer: Curtis Badley 

Original Decision Type: Delegated Decision 

Was Decision Overturned at 
Committee? 

No 

 

Proposal: Change of use from A1 to C3 under Class M 

Location: 20 Brambridge Eastleigh Hampshire SO50 6HZ   

 
 

 

Item No: 11    

Date of Inspector’s 
Decision: 

21st 
December 
2020 

Inspector’s 
Decision: 

Appeal Allowed  

Appeal Procedure 
(see code below): 

W Costs: Cost Refused 

W – Written representation;  I – Informal hearing;  
P – Public Inquiry; H – Householder 
    

Case No: 19/02434/FUL 

Case Officer: Curtis Badley 

Original Decision Type: Delegated Decision 

Was Decision Overturned at 
Committee? 

No 

 

Proposal: Proposed change of use from retail with living accommodation 
(A1/C3) to single dwelling (C3) including associated single storey 
extensions and elevational alterations 

Page 176



   
 
 

 

Location: 20 Brambridge Brambridge SO50 6HZ    

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 177



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 21/01/2021 Planning Committee
	Minutes


	7 Collingwood, Lower Chase Road, Swanmore, SO32 2PB (Case number: 20/01850/FUL)
	Collingwood committee presentation

	8 Hampshire Constabulary HQ, Romsey Road, Winchester, SO22 5DB (Case number: 20/01498/FUL)
	hants constabulary sales suite

	9 The Lodge, Home Lane, Sparsholt, Winchester, SO21 2NN (Case number: 20/00084/HOU)
	The Lodge - Presentation (002)

	11 Lion Hill House, Alton Road, West Meon, GU32 1JF (Case number: SDNP/20/03665/FUL)
	Lion Hill House presentation

	12 Long Ash, Pitcot Lane, Owslebury, SO21 1LR (Case number: SDNP/20/04221/HOUS)
	Long Ash, Owslebury - Feb 21

	13 Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order TPO 2288 - Combe Folly, Cliff Way, Winchester. (PDC1177)
	ConfirmationOfTPO2288_Combe Folly Cliff Wayv2

	14 Planning Appeals (PDC1179)

